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I. SCHOOL INFORMATION AND COVER PAGE
Created Tuesday, July 09, 2013
Updated Thursday, July 25, 2013

Page 1

1. SCHOOL NAME

(Select School name from dropdown menu; BEDS # appears first)

140600860856 ENTERPRISE CS

2. CHARTER AUTHORIZER

Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter School

3. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION

Buffalo

4. SCHOOL INFORMATION
PRIMARY ADDRESS PHONE

NUMBER
FAX NUMBER EMAIL ADDRESS

Enterprise Charter School
275 Oak Street
Buffalo, NY 14203

716-855-2114 716-855-2967 Heatherlyon@enterprisec
harter.org

4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES
4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES | Contact Name Heather Lyon

4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES | Title Interim CEO

4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES | Emergency Phone
Number (###-###-####)

5. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

www.Enterprisecharter.org

6. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER

2003-08-01 00:00:00

7. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION

2003-08-01 00:00:00

8. TOTAL NUMBER OF STUDENTS ENROLLED IN 2012-13 (as reported on BEDS Day)
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(as reported on BEDS Day)

405

9. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2012-13

Check all that apply

•  K

•  1

•  2

•  3

•  4

•  5

•  6

•  7

•  8

10. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL
MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION?
 

Yes/No Name of CMO/EMO

No
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11. FACILITIES

Will the School maintain or operate multiple sites?

No, just one site.

12. SCHOOL SITES

Please list the sites where the school will operate in 2013-14.

Physical Address Phone
Number

District/CSD Grades
Served at Site

School at Full
Capacity at Site

Facilities
Agreement

Site 1 (same as
primary site)

275 Oak Street
Buffalo, NY 14203

716-855-21
14

BUFFALO
CITY SD

K-8 Yes Own

Site 2

Site 3

12a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1 (same as the primary site).
Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Heather Lyon o

Operational Leader

Compliance Contact

Complaint Contact

13. Are the School sites co-located?

No
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14. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2012-2013 school year? (Please
include both those that required authorizer approval and those that did not require authorizer
approval).

No

16. Our signatures below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all
pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any
information in any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will
constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and use the mouse
on your PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

•  Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Thank you.
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Signature Page for President of Board of Trustees
Created Wednesday, July 31, 2013
Updated Thursday, August 01, 2013

Page 1

140600860856 ENTERPRISE CS

16. My signature below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate
and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent
Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any information in
any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute
grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and use the mouse on your
PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

•  Yes

Signature, Board President

Thank you.
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Appendix A: Progress Toward Goals
Created Monday, July 15, 2013
Updated Saturday, September 14, 2013

Page 1

1. NEW YORK STATE REPORT CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link to the most recent New York State School Report Card for the
charter school (See https://reportcards.nysed.gov/).

(Charter schools completing year one will not yet have a School Report Card or link to one. Please type "URL is not available" in the
space provided).

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/files/2011-12/RC-2012-140600860856.pdf

2. APPENDIX A: PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

2a. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If the Progress Toward Charter Goals are based on student performance data that the school will not have access to by August 1, 2013
(e.g., the NYS Assessment results), please the list goals and explain this in the "Progress Towards Attainment" column. This
information can be updated for Appendix A when available but no later than November 1, 2013. Board of Regents-authorized charter
schools that opened for instruction in the fall of 2012 or that were renewed in 2012-13 will be held to the same charter-specific
academic goals. Board of Regents-authorized charter schools will also be held accountable to Student Performance Benchmark 1 of the
Performance Framework.

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student
Performance Goal

Measure Used to Evaluate
Progress

2012-2013 Progress
Toward Attainment

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts to be Taken

Academic
Goal 1

Annually increase the
number of students at
Level 3 by 10% 

New York State ELA and
Mathematics assessments
given in the Spring of 2013

ELA: 26% at/above
standard
Math: 43% at/above
standard Science: 70%
at/above standard

Overall increase or
decrease from 2011-12
+3% ELA
+1% Math
-2% Science

Comparison of student 
proficiency scores for 2013 
state ELA and Math 
assessments (Levels 1, 2, 
3, and 4) in 2013 is not 
possible based upon the 
new “baseline” established 
with the shift to Common 
Core-aligned assessments. 
Upon release of the scores, 
State Education 
Commissioner John B. 
King, Jr. stated “These 
proficiency scores do not 
reflect a drop in 
performance, but rather a 
raising of standards to 
reflect college and career 
readiness in the 21st
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century” and noted that the
scores will not be used to
negatively impact district,
school, principal, or
teacher accountability.
Therefore we will use a
10% increase in
proficiency using
beginning (BOY) and end
(EOY) data 
 
The following strategies
are being used to
continually improve
services and learning at
Enterprise: 
 
Common staff time to have
targeted meetings on
student learning objectives,
data driven decision
making, professional
learning communities,
school wide goal setting
and attainment, lesson
design, etc. 
Common planning time for
collaboration between
teachers working at the
same level. 
iReady diagnostic testing,
running records, and
AIMSweb screening to get
baseline information and
track student growth 
Implementation of best
practices e.g. reader &
writer workshop 
 
Thorough evaluation of
teachers to make sure only
effective teachers are
invited back the next year. 
 
RtI time built into the
school day with a new
Student Support Services
Director providing
structure to a team of
professionals providing
targeted support.

Academic
Goal 2

Increase its scores
according to the
Commissioner’s
Performance Index for
AYP each year 

AYP for 2013 has not been
determined

AYP for 2013 has not been
determined

AYP for 2013 has not been
determined

Academic
Goal 3

By the end of the second
renewal term, students in
grades 3-8 who have been

Comparison of student
proficiency scores for 2013
state ELA and Math

Cannot compare to assess
attainment of goal

The following strategies 
are being used to 
continually improve
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continuously enrolled at
Enterprise will perform on
par with the state average
for proficiency on the NYS
ELA and math
assessments.

assessments (Levels 1, 2,
3, and 4) in 2013 is not
possible based upon the
new “baseline” established
with the shift to Common
Core-aligned assessments

services and learning at
Enterprise: 
 
Common staff time to have
targeted meetings on
student learning objectives,
data driven decision
making, professional
learning communities,
school wide goal setting
and attainment, lesson
design, etc. 
Common planning time for
collaboration between
teachers working at the
same level. 
 
iReady diagnostic testing,
running records, and
AIMSweb screening to get
baseline information and
track student growth 
Implementation of best
practices e.g. reader &
writer workshop 
 
Thorough evaluation of
teachers to make sure only
effective teachers are
invited back the next year. 
 
RtI time built into the
school day with a new
Student Support Services
Director providing
structure to a team of
professionals providing
targeted support.

Academic
Goal 4

80% of the students in
grades K-3 who are
continuously enrolled will
achieve benchmark status
according to AIMSWeb by
year-end test results.

AIMSWeb Assessments
given in the beginning of
the year and at the end of
the year.

AIMSWEB ELA
BOY EOY
K-Not applicable
1-4% 1-66%
2-49% 2-69%
3-30% 3-38%

Did not make target due to
starting point of students at
beginning of the year
Improvement
Grade 1 +62%
Grade 2 +20%
Grade 3 +8%

The following strategies 
are being used to 
continually improve 
services and learning at 
Enterprise: 
 
Common staff time to have 
targeted meetings on 
student learning objectives, 
data driven decision 
making, professional 
learning communities, 
school wide goal setting 
and attainment, lesson 
design, etc. 
Common planning time for 
collaboration between 
teachers working at the 
same level. 
 
iReady diagnostic testing, 
running records, and
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AIMSweb screening to get
baseline information and
track student growth 
Implementation of best
practices e.g. reader &
writer workshop 
 
Thorough evaluation of
teachers to make sure only
effective teachers are
invited back the next year. 
 
RtI time built into the
school day with a new
Student Support Services
Director providing
structure to a team of
professionals providing
targeted support.

Academic
Goal 5

80% of the students in
grades 3-8 who are
continuously enrolled at
Enterprise will maintain a
Level 3 or increase to a
Level 4 on the NYS ELA
and math assessments.

New York State ELA and
Mathematics assessments
given in the Spring of 2013

ELA: 26% at/above
standard
Math: 43% at/above
standard Science: 70%
at/above standard

Overall increase or
decrease from 2011-12
+3% ELA
+1% Math
-2% Science

These proficiency scores
do not reflect a drop in
performance, but rather a
raising of standards to
reflect college and career
readiness in the 21st
century” 

Academic
Goal 6

75% of the continuously
enrolled students in grades
1-8 will demonstrate a
year’s growth on the Terra
Nova reading and math
assessments. 

N/A This test is no longer used
at Enterprise.

This test is no longer used
at Enterprise.

Academic
Goal 7

Academic
Goal 8

2a1. Do have more academic goals to add?

(No response)

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student
Performance Goal

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

2012-2013 Progress
Toward Attainment

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts to be Taken

Academic Goal
9

Academic Goal
10

Academic Goal
11
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Academic Goal
12

Academic Goal
13

Academic Goal
14

Academic Goal
15

Academic Goal
16

2a2. Do have more academic goals to add?

(No response)

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student
Performance Goal

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

2012-2013 Progress
Toward Attainment

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts to be Taken

Academic Goal
17

Academic Goal
18

Academic Goal
19

Academic Goal
20

Academic Goal
21

Academic Goal
22

Academic Goal
23

Academic Goal
24

Academic Goal
25

Academic Goal
26

Academic Goal
27

Academic Goal
28

Academic Goal
29

Academic Goal
30
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2b. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals
Organizational Goal Measure Used to Evaluate

Progress
2012-2013 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met,
Describe
Efforts to be
Taken

Org
Goal 1

90% of the parents will report they are
satisfied with Enterprise, as measured
by an annual survey. 

ECS Parent/Guardian
Perception Survey given at
Parent/Teacher
Conferences.

According to results, 93.47%
of parents are satisfied or very
satisfied with ECS.

Org
Goal 2

100% of teachers will report that they
have access to high quality
professional development
opportunities, as measured by an
annual survey. 

Teacher Survey 100% of teachers reported that
they have access to high
quality professional
development.

Org
Goal 3

Org
Goal 4

Org
Goal 5

2b.1 Do you have more organizational goals to add?

(No response)

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals
Organizational
Goal

Measure Used to Evaluate
Progress

2012-2013 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts
to be Taken

Org Goal 6

Org Goal 7

Org Goal 8

Org Goal 9

Org Goal 10

Org Goal 11

Org Goal 12

Org Goal 13

Org Goal 14

Org Goal 15

2c. FINANCIAL GOALS

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals
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Financial Goals Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

2012-2013 Progress
Toward Attainment

If Not Met,
Describe Efforts
to be Taken

Financial
Goal 1

Enterprise will be fully enrolled 100% of the
time between August and April, as measured
by enrollment reports submitted to NYSED on
a bi-monthly basis. 

Bi-monthly reports
to Buffalo Board
of Ed.

ECS was fully enrolled
throughout the 201-2012
school year.

Financial
Goal 2

Financial
Goal 3

Financial
Goal 4

Financial
Goal 5



Appendix B

Enterprise Charter School

Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures per Child

6/30/2013

Total Expenditures per Child 13,528$       

Total Administrative Expenditures per Child 5,019$         
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Audited Financial Statement Checklist
Created Thursday, October 31, 2013

Page 1

Charter School Name: 

1. Please check each item that is included in the 2012-13 Audited Financial Statement submitted
for your charter school.

Yes No NA

Audited Financial Statements (including report on compliance and report on
internal control over financial reporting)

True False False

Single Audit (if applicable) False False True

CSP Agreed Upon Procedures (if applicable) False False True

Management Letter False False True

Report on Extracurricular Student Activity Accounts (if applicable) False False True

Corrective Action Plans for any Findings False False True

2. Please indicated if there is a finding(s) noted in any of the following sections of your charter
school's 2012-13 Audited Financial Statement.

Yes No

Report on Compliance False True

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting False True

Single Audit False True

CSP Agreed Upon Procedures Report False True

Management Letter False True

Thank you Heidi .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Enterprise Charter School

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Enterprise Charter School (the School) as of June 30, 2013, 
and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to a financial audit contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the School as of June 30, 2013, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Cyclorama Building  |  369 Franklin Street  |  Buffalo, New York 14202

716-856-3300  |  Fax 716-856-2524  |  www.LumsdenCPA.com  
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Other Matter

The financial statements of Enterprise Charter School as of June 30, 2012 were audited by other auditors whose 
report dated October 5, 2012, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Accompanying Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 21, 2013 on our 
consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 21, 2013



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Balance Sheets

2013 2012

Assets

Current assets:

Cash 3,741,060$     2,943,113$    

Accounts and other receivables (Note 2) 60,231 208,747

Prepaid expenses 26,264 23,031

3,827,555       3,174,891      

Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 6,858,627 7,071,253

Investments held in trust (Note 4) 800,706 745,618

Deferred financing costs, net 623,269 645,797

12,110,157$    11,637,559$  

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 80,000$          70,000$         

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 809,694 794,993

Deferred revenue -                     27,410

889,694          892,403         

Long-term debt (Note 5) 7,125,000 7,205,000

Net assets:

Unrestricted 4,089,973       3,535,247      

Temporarily restricted 5,490              4,909            

4,095,463       3,540,156      

12,110,157$    11,637,559$  

June 30, 

See accompanying notes. 3



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Statements of Activities

For the years ended June 30, 2013 2012

Changes in unrestricted net assets:

Support and revenue:

Public school districts:

Revenue-resident student enrollment 4,795,477$   4,820,328$   

Revenue-students with disabilities 386,269 448,374

Federal grants 471,945 378,961

State and local grants 80,710 90,305

Rental income 173,602 170,246

Other income 43,594 187,963

Net assets released from restrictions 1,419 1,784

Total unrestricted support and revenue 5,953,016     6,097,961    

Expenses:

Program expenses:

Regular education 3,823,769     3,627,879    

Special education 481,690        459,006       

Other programs 413,336        287,945       

Total program expenses 4,718,795     4,374,830    

Supporting services:

Management and general 679,495        895,225       

Total expenses 5,398,290     5,270,055    

Change in unrestricted net assets 554,726        827,906       

Changes in temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions 2,000            -                  

Net assets released from restrictions (1,419)           (1,784)          

Change in temporarily restricted net assets 581               (1,784)          

Change in net assets 555,307        826,122       

Net assets - beginning 3,540,156     2,714,034    

Net assets - ending 4,095,463$   3,540,156$   

See accompanying notes. 4



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended June 30, 2013 2012

Operating activities:
Change in net assets 555,307$      826,122$     
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
  net cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 330,220       301,123       
Amortization 22,528         22,528        
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 922 -                 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts and other receivables 148,516        118,000       
Prepaid expenses (3,233)          15,207        
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 14,701          127,740       
Deferred revenue (27,410)        15,805        

Net operating activities 1,041,551     1,426,525    

Investing activities:
Property and equipment expenditures (118,516)       (1,203,633)   
Withdrawals from (deposits to) investments held in trust (55,088)        920,317       

Net investing activities (173,604)      (283,316)     

Financing activities:
Principal repayments on long-term debt (70,000)        (70,000)       

Net change in cash 797,947       1,073,209    

Cash - beginning 2,943,113     1,869,904    

Cash - ending 3,741,060$   2,943,113$  

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid for interest on long-term debt 532,825$      537,725$     

See accompanying notes. 5
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ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Organization and Purpose:

Enterprise Charter School (the School) operates a charter 
school in the City of Buffalo, New York (the City)
pursuant to its Charter Agreement with the Education 
Department of the State of New York.  The School 
currently offers classes from kindergarten through grade 8. 
The School has been chartered through June 30, 2014.

Subsequent Events:

Management has evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through October 21, 
2013, the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued.

Cash:

Cash in financial institutions potentially subjects the School 
to concentrations of credit risk since it may exceed insured 
limits at various times throughout the year.  The School is 
required to hold no less than $75,000 in an escrow account 
in order to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be 
associated with dissolution should it occur.

Receivables:

Receivables are stated at the amounts management expects 
to collect from outstanding balances.  Balances that are 
outstanding after management has used reasonable 
collection efforts are written off through a charge to bad 
debts expense and a credit to accounts receivable.  An 
allowance for doubtful accounts is considered unnecessary 
by management because all significant amounts deemed 
uncollectible are written off each year.

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of 
accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is provided using 
the straight-line method over estimated useful asset lives.  
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as 
incurred; significant improvements are capitalized.

Deferred Financing Costs:

Deferred financing costs consist of charges incurred by the 
School in connection with its financing arrangements and 
are amortized over the remaining term of these 
arrangements.  Amortization for deferred financing costs 
for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $22,528.

Enrollment Fees:

The School is reimbursed by each resident district based 
on the product of the annual approved operating expense 
of the district and the full time equivalent enrollment of 
the students in the School residing in the district.  The 
School’s enrollment fees are received primarily from the
Board of Education for the City of Buffalo School District.

Grants:

The School is the recipient of awards and reimbursements 
from federal, state and local sources.  The awards and 
reimbursements are subject to compliance and financial 
audits by the funding sources.  Management believes no 
significant adjustments are necessary to recognized 
amounts.

The School records grant awards accounted for as 
exchange transactions as deferred revenue until related 
services are performed.

Income Taxes:

The School is a 501(c)(3) organization exempt from 
taxation under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code.  The School believes it is no longer subject to 
examination by Federal and State authorities for years prior 
to 2010.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates.
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Cost Allocation:

The School’s costs of providing its various programs and 
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in 
the statements of activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have 
been allocated among the programs and supporting 
services benefited.

Reclassifications:

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2012 
have been reclassified to conform with the presentation 
adopted for June 30, 2013.

2.  Accounts and Other Receivables:

2013 2012
Transportation advance -$           141,750$ 
Grants 52,717    37,993     
Enrollment fees -             12,266     
Other 7,514      16,738     

60,231$   208,747$ 

3.  Property and Equipment:

2013 2012
Building and improvements  $    7,336,485  $   7,314,623 
Furniture and equipment 764,408        679,320       

Books           163,869          156,724 

Vehicles             20,751           20,751 
       8,285,513       8,171,418 

Less accumulated depreciation        1,426,886       1,100,165 
6,858,627$   7,071,253$   

4. Investments Held in Trust:

The following accounts are held by a trustee in compliance 
with the issuance of the 2011 Series bonds (Note 5),
representing investments restricted for project 
construction, repair and replacement, reserves, principal 
reduction and interest payments.

2013 2012
Debt service fund  $       635,654  $      635,592 
Repair and replacement fund 125,014         75,005         
Custodian account             40,038           35,021 

800,706$      745,618$     

5. Long-Term Debt:

2013 2012
Erie County Industrial Development

Agency Facility Revenue Bonds
(Enterprise Charter School Project),
 Series 2011A (tax exempt) Bonds,
principal payments beginning June
2015 in annual principal installments
ranging from $90,000 to $590,000,
plus interest ranging from 6.0% 
to 7.5%, final payment due
December 2040. 7,125,000$     7,125,000$     

Erie County Industrial Development
Agency Facility Revenue Bonds
(Enterprise Charter School
Project), Series 2011B (taxable)
Bonds, payable in annual
principal installments ranging
from $70,000 to $80,000,
plus interest at 7.0%, final
payment due December 2013. 80,000           150,000         

7,205,000      7,275,000      
Less current portion 80,000           70,000           

7,125,000$     7,205,000$     

In February 2011, the School entered into an installment 
sale agreement with Erie County Industrial Development 
Agency (ECIDA), principally to finance the cost of 
acquiring and renovating buildings to be used for the 
operation of the School.  To finance the project, ECIDA 
authorized the sale of Revenue Bonds in the aggregate 
amount of $7,345,000 under a trust indenture with a bank 
as trustee.  The sale is secured by mortgage and security 
agreements granting the trustee a mortgage lien on and 
security interest in the facility and the other mortgaged 
property.  The bonds are further secured by the Debt 
service fund (Note 4).

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt subsequent to June 
30, 2013 are:

2014 80,000$       
2015 90,000         
2016 95,000         
2017 105,000       
2018 110,000        

Thereafter 6,725,000    
7,205,000$  

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012 was $531,950 and $537,521.
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6. Line of Credit

The School has available an unsecured $450,000 working 
capital line of credit with interest payable at one month 
LIBOR plus 3.25%.  There were no borrowings 
outstanding at June 30, 2013 and 2012.

7.  Retirement Plan:

The School participates in the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement System (TRS) and New York State and Local 
Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) (the Systems), which 
are cost-sharing multiple employer, public employee 
retirement systems.  The Systems offer a wide range of 
plans and benefits which are related to years of service and 
final average salary, vesting of retirement benefits, death 
and disability. 

New York State Teachers’ Retirement System:

TRS is administered by the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement Board and provides benefits to plan members 
and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and 
the Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of 
New York.  TRS issues a publicly available financial report 
that contains financial statements and required 
supplementary information.  The report may be obtained 
from the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System at 
www.nystrs.org.

New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement 
System:

ERS provides retirement benefits as well as death and 
disability benefits.  New York State Retirement and Social 
Security Law governs obligations of employers and 
employees to contribute and provide benefits to 
employees. ERS issues a publicly available financial report 
that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. This report may be obtained 
from the New York State and Local Retirement System at 
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire.

Funding Policies:

No employee contribution is required for those whose 
service began prior to July 1976.  The Systems require 
employee contributions of 3% of salary for the first 10 
years of service for those employees who joined the
Systems from July 1976 through December 2009.  
Participants whose service began on or after January 1, 
2010 through March 31, 2012 are required to contribute 
3% (ERS) or 3.5% (TRS) of compensation throughout 
their active membership in the Systems. Participants 
whose service began on or after April 1, 2012 are required 
to contribute a percentage ranging from 3% to 6% each 
year, based on their level of compensation.  

For ERS, the Comptroller annually certifies the rates used,
expressed as a percentage of the wages of participants, to 
compute the contributions required to be made by the 
School to the pension accumulation fund.  The rate ranges 
from 15% to 18.5% and 12.7% to 15.7% for 2013 and 
2012, dependent on the participant’s tier.  Pursuant to 
Article 11 of Education Law, rates are established annually 
for TRS by the New York State Teachers’ Retirement 
Board at an actuarially determined rate. The rate is 11.84%
of the annual covered payroll as of June 30, 2013, and 
11.11% for the year ended June 30, 2012.

The required contributions for all plans were $293,052 and 
$266,904 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

8.  Rental Income:

The School leases office space to New York State under a 
non-cancellable operating lease.  Future minimum rental 
payments to be received subsequent to June 30, 2013 are:

2014 141,252$      
2015 141,252        
2016 141,252        
2017 141,252        
2018 94,168         

659,176$      



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Additional Information
Schedule of Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2013 (with comparative totals for 2012)

2012

Regular Special Other Management
Education Education Programs and General Total Total

Salaries 1,743,594$      191,263$   242,404$    376,504$       2,553,765$ 2,513,415$ 
Employee benefits and taxes 534,553           58,624      74,349        138,860         806,386      758,401      
Consultants 37,725             128,372    -                 -                    166,097      195,346      
Supplies and materials 90,444             9,915        -                 -                    100,359      55,146        
Student services 55,047             6,035        7,650          -                    68,732        114,813      
Transportation 49,476             5,424        6,876          -                    61,776 62,901
Occupancy 7,551               472           472             944                9,439         19,850        
Repairs and maintenance 135,223           8,451        8,451          16,903           169,028      140,980      
Staff development 55,938             3,496        3,496          6,992             69,922        47,455        
Meetings, conferences, and travel 19,132              1,196        1,196           2,392             23,916        12,553        
Office expenses 35,592             2,224        2,224          4,449             44,489        41,855        
Postage and delivery 4,482               280           280             560                5,602         4,723         
Printing and production 7,573               473           473             947                9,466         12,016        
Equipment rental -                      -               -                 -                    -                 8,989         
Professional fees 116,511            7,282        7,282          14,564           145,639      102,213      
Insurance 57,478             3,592        3,592          7,185             71,847        66,451        
Dues and subscriptions 5,751               360           360             719                7,190          8,199         
Telephone and internet 29,102             1,819        1,819           3,638             36,378        28,924        
Utilities 92,521             5,783        5,783          11,565           115,652      117,794      
Technology 11,605              725           725             1,451             14,506        23,329        
Advertising 6,019               376           376             752                7,523         8,363         
Interest 425,559           26,598      26,598        53,195           531,950      537,521      
Bad debt -                      -               -                 -                    -                 39,925        
Miscellaneous 20,695             1,293        1,293          2,599             25,880        25,242        

3,541,571         464,053    395,699      644,219         5,045,542   4,946,404   
Depreciation and amortization 282,198           17,637      17,637        35,276           352,748      323,651      

Total 3,823,769$      481,690$  413,336$     679,495$       5,398,290$ 5,270,055$ 

2013

See independent auditors' report on additional information. 9
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Trustees
Enterprise Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Enterprise Charter School (the School), 
which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for 
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 21, 2013.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.

Cyclorama Building  |  369 Franklin Street  |  Buffalo, New York 14202

716-856-3300  |  Fax 716-856-2524  |  www.LumsdenCPA.com  
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose.

October 21, 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Enterprise Charter School

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Enterprise Charter School (the School) as of June 30, 2013, 
and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to a financial audit contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the School as of June 30, 2013, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Cyclorama Building  |  369 Franklin Street  |  Buffalo, New York 14202

716-856-3300  |  Fax 716-856-2524  |  www.LumsdenCPA.com  
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Other Matter

The financial statements of Enterprise Charter School as of June 30, 2012 were audited by other auditors whose 
report dated October 5, 2012, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Accompanying Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 21, 2013 on our 
consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 21, 2013



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Balance Sheets

2013 2012

Assets

Current assets:

Cash 3,741,060$     2,943,113$    

Accounts and other receivables (Note 2) 60,231 208,747

Prepaid expenses 26,264 23,031

3,827,555       3,174,891      

Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 6,858,627 7,071,253

Investments held in trust (Note 4) 800,706 745,618

Deferred financing costs, net 623,269 645,797

12,110,157$    11,637,559$  

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 80,000$          70,000$         

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 809,694 794,993

Deferred revenue -                     27,410

889,694          892,403         

Long-term debt (Note 5) 7,125,000 7,205,000

Net assets:

Unrestricted 4,089,973       3,535,247      

Temporarily restricted 5,490              4,909            

4,095,463       3,540,156      

12,110,157$    11,637,559$  

June 30, 

See accompanying notes. 3



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Statements of Activities

For the years ended June 30, 2013 2012

Changes in unrestricted net assets:

Support and revenue:

Public school districts:

Revenue-resident student enrollment 4,795,477$   4,820,328$   

Revenue-students with disabilities 386,269 448,374

Federal grants 471,945 378,961

State and local grants 80,710 90,305

Rental income 173,602 170,246

Other income 43,594 187,963

Net assets released from restrictions 1,419 1,784

Total unrestricted support and revenue 5,953,016     6,097,961    

Expenses:

Program expenses:

Regular education 3,823,769     3,627,879    

Special education 481,690        459,006       

Other programs 413,336        287,945       

Total program expenses 4,718,795     4,374,830    

Supporting services:

Management and general 679,495        895,225       

Total expenses 5,398,290     5,270,055    

Change in unrestricted net assets 554,726        827,906       

Changes in temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions 2,000            -                  

Net assets released from restrictions (1,419)           (1,784)          

Change in temporarily restricted net assets 581               (1,784)          

Change in net assets 555,307        826,122       

Net assets - beginning 3,540,156     2,714,034    

Net assets - ending 4,095,463$   3,540,156$   

See accompanying notes. 4



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended June 30, 2013 2012

Operating activities:
Change in net assets 555,307$      826,122$     
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
  net cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 330,220       301,123       
Amortization 22,528         22,528        
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 922 -                 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts and other receivables 148,516        118,000       
Prepaid expenses (3,233)          15,207        
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 14,701          127,740       
Deferred revenue (27,410)        15,805        

Net operating activities 1,041,551     1,426,525    

Investing activities:
Property and equipment expenditures (118,516)       (1,203,633)   
Withdrawals from (deposits to) investments held in trust (55,088)        920,317       

Net investing activities (173,604)      (283,316)     

Financing activities:
Principal repayments on long-term debt (70,000)        (70,000)       

Net change in cash 797,947       1,073,209    

Cash - beginning 2,943,113     1,869,904    

Cash - ending 3,741,060$   2,943,113$  

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid for interest on long-term debt 532,825$      537,725$     

See accompanying notes. 5
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ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Organization and Purpose:

Enterprise Charter School (the School) operates a charter 
school in the City of Buffalo, New York (the City)
pursuant to its Charter Agreement with the Education 
Department of the State of New York.  The School 
currently offers classes from kindergarten through grade 8. 
The School has been chartered through June 30, 2014.

Subsequent Events:

Management has evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through October 21, 
2013, the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued.

Cash:

Cash in financial institutions potentially subjects the School 
to concentrations of credit risk since it may exceed insured 
limits at various times throughout the year.  The School is 
required to hold no less than $75,000 in an escrow account 
in order to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be 
associated with dissolution should it occur.

Receivables:

Receivables are stated at the amounts management expects 
to collect from outstanding balances.  Balances that are 
outstanding after management has used reasonable 
collection efforts are written off through a charge to bad 
debts expense and a credit to accounts receivable.  An 
allowance for doubtful accounts is considered unnecessary 
by management because all significant amounts deemed 
uncollectible are written off each year.

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of 
accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is provided using 
the straight-line method over estimated useful asset lives.  
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as 
incurred; significant improvements are capitalized.

Deferred Financing Costs:

Deferred financing costs consist of charges incurred by the 
School in connection with its financing arrangements and 
are amortized over the remaining term of these 
arrangements.  Amortization for deferred financing costs 
for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $22,528.

Enrollment Fees:

The School is reimbursed by each resident district based 
on the product of the annual approved operating expense 
of the district and the full time equivalent enrollment of 
the students in the School residing in the district.  The 
School’s enrollment fees are received primarily from the
Board of Education for the City of Buffalo School District.

Grants:

The School is the recipient of awards and reimbursements 
from federal, state and local sources.  The awards and 
reimbursements are subject to compliance and financial 
audits by the funding sources.  Management believes no 
significant adjustments are necessary to recognized 
amounts.

The School records grant awards accounted for as 
exchange transactions as deferred revenue until related 
services are performed.

Income Taxes:

The School is a 501(c)(3) organization exempt from 
taxation under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code.  The School believes it is no longer subject to 
examination by Federal and State authorities for years prior 
to 2010.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates.
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Cost Allocation:

The School’s costs of providing its various programs and 
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in 
the statements of activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have 
been allocated among the programs and supporting 
services benefited.

Reclassifications:

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2012 
have been reclassified to conform with the presentation 
adopted for June 30, 2013.

2.  Accounts and Other Receivables:

2013 2012
Transportation advance -$           141,750$ 
Grants 52,717    37,993     
Enrollment fees -             12,266     
Other 7,514      16,738     

60,231$   208,747$ 

3.  Property and Equipment:

2013 2012
Building and improvements  $    7,336,485  $   7,314,623 
Furniture and equipment 764,408        679,320       

Books           163,869          156,724 

Vehicles             20,751           20,751 
       8,285,513       8,171,418 

Less accumulated depreciation        1,426,886       1,100,165 
6,858,627$   7,071,253$   

4. Investments Held in Trust:

The following accounts are held by a trustee in compliance 
with the issuance of the 2011 Series bonds (Note 5),
representing investments restricted for project 
construction, repair and replacement, reserves, principal 
reduction and interest payments.

2013 2012
Debt service fund  $       635,654  $      635,592 
Repair and replacement fund 125,014         75,005         
Custodian account             40,038           35,021 

800,706$      745,618$     

5. Long-Term Debt:

2013 2012
Erie County Industrial Development

Agency Facility Revenue Bonds
(Enterprise Charter School Project),
 Series 2011A (tax exempt) Bonds,
principal payments beginning June
2015 in annual principal installments
ranging from $90,000 to $590,000,
plus interest ranging from 6.0% 
to 7.5%, final payment due
December 2040. 7,125,000$     7,125,000$     

Erie County Industrial Development
Agency Facility Revenue Bonds
(Enterprise Charter School
Project), Series 2011B (taxable)
Bonds, payable in annual
principal installments ranging
from $70,000 to $80,000,
plus interest at 7.0%, final
payment due December 2013. 80,000           150,000         

7,205,000      7,275,000      
Less current portion 80,000           70,000           

7,125,000$     7,205,000$     

In February 2011, the School entered into an installment 
sale agreement with Erie County Industrial Development 
Agency (ECIDA), principally to finance the cost of 
acquiring and renovating buildings to be used for the 
operation of the School.  To finance the project, ECIDA 
authorized the sale of Revenue Bonds in the aggregate 
amount of $7,345,000 under a trust indenture with a bank 
as trustee.  The sale is secured by mortgage and security 
agreements granting the trustee a mortgage lien on and 
security interest in the facility and the other mortgaged 
property.  The bonds are further secured by the Debt 
service fund (Note 4).

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt subsequent to June 
30, 2013 are:

2014 80,000$       
2015 90,000         
2016 95,000         
2017 105,000       
2018 110,000        

Thereafter 6,725,000    
7,205,000$  

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012 was $531,950 and $537,521.
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6. Line of Credit

The School has available an unsecured $450,000 working 
capital line of credit with interest payable at one month 
LIBOR plus 3.25%.  There were no borrowings 
outstanding at June 30, 2013 and 2012.

7.  Retirement Plan:

The School participates in the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement System (TRS) and New York State and Local 
Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) (the Systems), which 
are cost-sharing multiple employer, public employee 
retirement systems.  The Systems offer a wide range of 
plans and benefits which are related to years of service and 
final average salary, vesting of retirement benefits, death 
and disability. 

New York State Teachers’ Retirement System:

TRS is administered by the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement Board and provides benefits to plan members 
and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and 
the Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of 
New York.  TRS issues a publicly available financial report 
that contains financial statements and required 
supplementary information.  The report may be obtained 
from the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System at 
www.nystrs.org.

New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement 
System:

ERS provides retirement benefits as well as death and 
disability benefits.  New York State Retirement and Social 
Security Law governs obligations of employers and 
employees to contribute and provide benefits to 
employees. ERS issues a publicly available financial report 
that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. This report may be obtained 
from the New York State and Local Retirement System at 
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire.

Funding Policies:

No employee contribution is required for those whose 
service began prior to July 1976.  The Systems require 
employee contributions of 3% of salary for the first 10 
years of service for those employees who joined the
Systems from July 1976 through December 2009.  
Participants whose service began on or after January 1, 
2010 through March 31, 2012 are required to contribute 
3% (ERS) or 3.5% (TRS) of compensation throughout 
their active membership in the Systems. Participants 
whose service began on or after April 1, 2012 are required 
to contribute a percentage ranging from 3% to 6% each 
year, based on their level of compensation.  

For ERS, the Comptroller annually certifies the rates used,
expressed as a percentage of the wages of participants, to 
compute the contributions required to be made by the 
School to the pension accumulation fund.  The rate ranges 
from 15% to 18.5% and 12.7% to 15.7% for 2013 and 
2012, dependent on the participant’s tier.  Pursuant to 
Article 11 of Education Law, rates are established annually 
for TRS by the New York State Teachers’ Retirement 
Board at an actuarially determined rate. The rate is 11.84%
of the annual covered payroll as of June 30, 2013, and 
11.11% for the year ended June 30, 2012.

The required contributions for all plans were $293,052 and 
$266,904 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

8.  Rental Income:

The School leases office space to New York State under a 
non-cancellable operating lease.  Future minimum rental 
payments to be received subsequent to June 30, 2013 are:

2014 141,252$      
2015 141,252        
2016 141,252        
2017 141,252        
2018 94,168         

659,176$      



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL

Additional Information
Schedule of Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2013 (with comparative totals for 2012)

2012

Regular Special Other Management
Education Education Programs and General Total Total

Salaries 1,743,594$      191,263$   242,404$    376,504$       2,553,765$ 2,513,415$ 
Employee benefits and taxes 534,553           58,624      74,349        138,860         806,386      758,401      
Consultants 37,725             128,372    -                 -                    166,097      195,346      
Supplies and materials 90,444             9,915        -                 -                    100,359      55,146        
Student services 55,047             6,035        7,650          -                    68,732        114,813      
Transportation 49,476             5,424        6,876          -                    61,776 62,901
Occupancy 7,551               472           472             944                9,439         19,850        
Repairs and maintenance 135,223           8,451        8,451          16,903           169,028      140,980      
Staff development 55,938             3,496        3,496          6,992             69,922        47,455        
Meetings, conferences, and travel 19,132              1,196        1,196           2,392             23,916        12,553        
Office expenses 35,592             2,224        2,224          4,449             44,489        41,855        
Postage and delivery 4,482               280           280             560                5,602         4,723         
Printing and production 7,573               473           473             947                9,466         12,016        
Equipment rental -                      -               -                 -                    -                 8,989         
Professional fees 116,511            7,282        7,282          14,564           145,639      102,213      
Insurance 57,478             3,592        3,592          7,185             71,847        66,451        
Dues and subscriptions 5,751               360           360             719                7,190          8,199         
Telephone and internet 29,102             1,819        1,819           3,638             36,378        28,924        
Utilities 92,521             5,783        5,783          11,565           115,652      117,794      
Technology 11,605              725           725             1,451             14,506        23,329        
Advertising 6,019               376           376             752                7,523         8,363         
Interest 425,559           26,598      26,598        53,195           531,950      537,521      
Bad debt -                      -               -                 -                    -                 39,925        
Miscellaneous 20,695             1,293        1,293          2,599             25,880        25,242        

3,541,571         464,053    395,699      644,219         5,045,542   4,946,404   
Depreciation and amortization 282,198           17,637      17,637        35,276           352,748      323,651      

Total 3,823,769$      481,690$  413,336$     679,495$       5,398,290$ 5,270,055$ 

2013

See independent auditors' report on additional information. 9
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Trustees
Enterprise Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Enterprise Charter School (the School), 
which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for 
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 21, 2013.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.

Cyclorama Building  |  369 Franklin Street  |  Buffalo, New York 14202

716-856-3300  |  Fax 716-856-2524  |  www.LumsdenCPA.com  
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose.

October 21, 2013



APPROVED BY 

Board of Trustees - 5/14/13

Enterprise Charter School

Projected Operating Budget 

July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014

Student FTE's 405

Buffalo per student 12,005$   

Total

Acct July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June 6/30/14
Revenue

4120 School District Payments (State Aid) -            482,990      482,990      482,990      482,990     482,990     482,990    482,990     482,990     482,990     483,015     4,829,925    

4119 Special Education 45,430        45,430        45,430        45,430       45,430       45,430      45,430       45,430       45,430       45,404       454,274       

4006 Federal and State grants 47,410        47,410        47,410        47,410       47,410       47,410      47,410       47,410       47,410       47,440       474,130       

4008 Private Grants -             -             -             -            -            -            -            -             -            -            -               

4010 Contributions -              -            -             -             -             -            -            -            -            -             -            -            -               

4015 Interest income 210             210           210             210             210             210            210            210           210            210            210            190            2,500           

4140 Uniform Income 1,800          1,800          1,800          1,800         1,800         1,800        1,800         1,800         1,800         1,800         18,000         

4180 Student activities 500             500             500             500            500            500           500            500            500            500            5,000           

Rental Income 15,656        15,656      15,656        15,656        15,656        15,656       15,656       15,656      15,656       15,656       15,656       15,654       187,870       

4520 Bookstore Income 500             500             500             500            500            500           500            500            500            500            5,000           

Total Revenue 15,866        15,866      594,496      594,496      594,496      594,496     594,496     594,496    594,496     594,496     594,496     594,503     5,976,699    

Expenses

Instructional:

5010 Instructional salaries 23,615        183,264    171,456      171,456      171,456      171,456     257,197     171,456    171,456     171,456     171,456     171,506     2,007,230    

5020 Instructional consultants 6,445          6,445        6,445          6,445          6,445          6,445         6,445         6,445        6,445         6,445         6,445         6,445         77,340         

5040 SPED teachers -              12,266      24,531        24,531        24,531        24,531       24,531       24,531      24,531       24,531       24,531       24,535       257,580       

5041 SPED consultants 459             10,853      11,949        13,551        11,517        10,912       13,096       10,128      14,549       10,719       12,745       12,132       132,610       

6603 Educational materials 100             6,620        890             3,110          410             640            610            2,560        1,000         360            1,210         2,490         20,000         

5201 Classroom supplies & materials -              (40)            10,350        3,760          3,210          340            10              750           -            1,620         -            -            20,000         

6106 Copy paper - classrooms -              (20)            5,180          1,880          1,600          170            10              380           -            800            -            -            10,000         

5220 Library supplies and materials -              (10)            2,590          940             800             90              -            190           -            400            -            -            5,000           

5230 Instructional Software -              670           -             16,960        -             -            370            -            -            -             -            -            18,000         

5320 Student services 400             400             400             400            400            400           400            400            400            400            4,000           

5320 Extracurricular 3,039          5,608        6,353          6,033          5,013          5,493         5,651         5,733        5,743         5,153         4,803         8,078         66,700         

5520 Bookstore expense 500             500             500             500            500            500           500            500            500            500            5,000           

5800 Field trips 130             -            790             1,580          70               1,500         580            2,240        3,860         470            850            80              12,150         

5810 Student activities 600             600             600             600            600            600           600            600            600            600            6,000           

5820 Student testing & assessment -              2,730        4,000          21,150        -             -            210            -            260            -             -            -            28,350         

5860 Transportation 3,140        53,320        700             700             700            700            700           700            700            700            670            62,730         

5870 Uniforms 2,300          2,300          2,300          2,300         2,300         2,300        2,300         2,300         2,300         2,300         23,000         

5880 Summer School 3,380          3,380        6,760           

-               

Administrative:

6010 Salaries 20,323        30,486      20,323        20,323        20,323        20,323       30,486       20,323      20,323       20,323       20,323       20,331       264,210       

6145 Meeting expense 130             130           130             130             130             130            130            130           130            130            130            170            1,600           

6147 Board expense 70               70             70               70               70               70              70              70             70              70              70              30              800              

6160 Dues & Memberships/subscriptions 1,200          1,200        1,200          1,200          1,200          1,200         1,200         1,200        1,200         1,200         1,200         1,200         14,400         

6700 Staff Development 2,700          2,700        2,700          2,700          2,700          2,700         2,700         2,700        2,700         2,700         2,700         2,700         32,400         

6771 Travel & Conferences 2,430          2,430        2,430          2,430          2,430          2,430         2,430         2,430        2,430         2,430         2,430         2,470         29,200         

Maintenance:

5300 Custodial salaries 7,819          11,727      7,819          7,819          7,819          7,819         11,727       7,819        7,819         7,819         7,819         7,815         101,640       

7100 Repairs & maintenance 12,540        12,540      12,540        12,540        12,540        12,540       12,540       12,540      12,540       12,540       12,540       12,560       150,500       

Building Maintenance costs 7,380          7,380        7,380          7,380          7,380          7,380         7,380         7,380        7,380         7,380         7,380         7,400         88,580         

General:

8090 Payroll taxes 20,470        17,220      27,190        19,020        18,150        17,820       29,120       27,060      32,200       18,350       18,440       20,560       265,600       

8095 Pension 25,290        24,280      36,700        25,720        26,360        19,450       31,280       25,430      36,120       43,350       6,650         133,429     434,059       

8100 Health Insurance 27,670        27,670      27,670        27,670        27,670        27,670       27,670       27,670      27,670       27,670       27,670       27,680       332,050       



APPROVED BY 

Board of Trustees - 5/14/13

Enterprise Charter School

Projected Operating Budget 

July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014

Student FTE's 405

Buffalo per student 12,005$   

Total

Acct July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June 6/30/14

8210 Utilities 12,420        12,420      12,420        12,420        12,420        12,420       12,420       12,420      12,420       12,420       12,420       12,380       149,000       

6291 Water & sewer rent 7,800          -            -             -             -             -            -            -            -            -             -            -            7,800           

8400 Insurance 6,760          6,780        5,940          8,580          (190)           6,790         6,990         9,060        7,240         5,960         6,520         10,860       81,290         

8420 Office supplies 3,850          3,850        3,850          3,850          3,850          3,850         3,850         3,850        3,850         3,850         3,850         3,850         46,200         

8430 Postage 480             480           480             480             480             480            480            480           480            480            480            520            5,800           

8440 Printing -              -            -             -             -             -            -            -            -            -             -            -            -               

8500 Professional fees 11,498        11,498      11,498        11,498        11,498        11,498       11,498       11,498      11,498       11,498       11,498       11,492       137,970       

8510 Technology Expense 4,524          4,524        4,524          4,524          4,524          4,524         4,524         4,524        4,524         4,524         4,524         4,536         54,300         

8530 Contracted services/copier & computer rent 870             870           870             870             870             870            870            870           870            870            870            810            10,380         

8540 Telephone/internet 2,000          2,000        2,000          2,000          2,000          2,000         2,000         2,000        2,000         2,000         2,000         2,000         24,000         

8550 Advertising & promotion 700             700           700             700             700             700            700            700           700            700            700            700            8,400           

8560 Payroll processing fees 750             750           750             750             750             750            750            750           750            750            750            750            9,000           

8670 Fundraising expense 290             290           290             290             290             290            290            290           290            290            290            310            3,500           

8690 Miscellaneous 810             810           810             810             810             810            810            810           810            810            810            820            9,730           

8940 Depreciation 30,830        30,830      30,830        30,830        30,830        30,830       30,830       30,830      30,830       30,830       30,830       30,870       370,000       

8990 Interest expense -              -            -             -             -             -            -            -            -            -             -            -            -               

Interest expense - bldg debt 43,960        43,960      43,960        43,960        43,960        43,960       43,960       43,960      43,960       43,960       43,960       44,015       527,575       

Total expenses 292,732      492,501    566,728      524,460      469,116      465,381     589,915     485,707    503,148     489,358     453,394     589,994     5,922,434    

Increase (decrease) in net assets (276,866)     (476,635)   27,768        70,036        125,380      129,115     4,581         108,789    91,348       105,138     141,102     4,509         54,265         

(276,866)           (753,501)        (725,733)          (655,697)          (530,317)          (401,202)         (396,621)         (287,832)        (196,484)         (91,346)           49,756            54,265            

Cash Flow
Add: Non-Cash Expenditures & Proceeds from Line of Credit and Other Timing Adjustments

Depreciation 30,830        30,830      30,830        30,830        30,830        30,830       30,830       30,830      30,830       30,830       30,830       30,870       370,000       

Line of Credit -              -            -             -               

State Aid Cash Payments 804,990      804,990      804,990      804,990     804,990     804,975     4,829,925    

835,820      30,830      835,820      30,830        835,820      30,830       835,820     30,830      835,820     30,830       835,805     30,870       5,199,925    

Less: Capital Equipment Purchases & Payments on Line of Credit & Other Timing Adjustments

Capital Equipment Purchases (275,000)     -            -             (275,000)      

Payments on Line of Credit -              -             -             -             -            -            -            -            -             -            -            -               

Principal payments/ Bldg Loan (80,000)     (80,000)        

State Aid Revenue Recognition -              -            (482,990)    (482,990)    (482,990)    (482,990)   (482,990)   (482,990)   (482,990)   (482,990)    (482,990)   (483,015)   (4,829,925)   

(275,000)     -            (482,990)    (482,990)    (482,990)    (482,990)   (482,990)   (482,990)   (482,990)   (482,990)    (482,990)   (563,015)   (5,184,925)   

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) - Current Month 283,954      (445,805)   380,598      (382,124)    478,210      (323,045)   357,411     (343,371)   444,178     (347,022)    493,917     (527,636)   69,265         

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) - End of Month 283,954      (161,851)   218,747      (163,377)    314,833      (8,212)       349,199     5,828        450,006     102,984     596,901     69,265       

Balance of Line of Credit - End of Month -              -            -             -             -             -            -            -            -            -             -            -            -               
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An Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form must be completed for each active
Trustee who served on the charter school's Board of Trustees during the 2012-13 school
year. Trustees are at times difficult to track down in the summber months. Trustees may
complete and submit at their leisure (but before the deadline) their individual form at:
http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/.  

Trustees who are technologically advanced may complete the survey using their smartphones or
other mobile devices by downloading the this bar code link to the
survey http://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/210748/publish/qrcode/. (Make sure you have
the bar code application reader on your phone).

If a Trustee is unable to complete the form by the deadline (i.e, out of the country), the school is
responsible for submitting the information required on the form for that individual trustee.  

Just send the links via email today to your Trustees requesting that they each complete their
form as soon as possible.

Thank you.

Yes, each member of the school's Board of Trustees has received a link to the Disclosure of
Financial Interest Form.

Yes

Thank you.

http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/
http://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/210748/publish/qrcode/
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1. Current Board Member Information
Full Name
of
Individual
Trustees

Position on
Board
(Officer or
Rep).

Voting
Membe
r

Area of
Expertise &/or
Additional Role

Terms Served & Length (include date
of election and expiration)

Committee
affiliations

1 David T.
Cantaffa,
Ph. D.

Member Yes Academic
Committee
Chair

Election Date-7/11/12
Re-Election-7/15/2013
# of Terms-2
Length- 1 Year
1 Year 11 Months
Expires- 7/1/2015

Academic
Executive
HR

2 Thomas Ess Member Yes HR and Finance
Committee
Member

Election Date-6/10/2013
# of Terms-1
Terms Served-2 Months
Expires-7/1/2014

Finanance
HR

3 Rachel
Martin

Secretary Yes Parent
Representative

Election Date-9/2/12
Re-Election-7/12/12
# of Terms-2
Expires-7/1/2015
2 Years 11 Months

Executive
HR

4 Richard J.
Morrisroe

Chair/Preside
nt

Yes Executive
Committee
Chair

Election Date-9/2/10
Election-9/2/10
Re-Election-7/12/12
# of Terms-2
Resigned-7/15/13
2 Years 10 Months

Executive
Finance
HR

5 Orlando
Perez

Member Yes At Large Election Date-4/15/2013
Re-Election Date-NA
# of Terms-1
Terms Served-1
Resigned- 7/15/2013
Expires- 7/1/2014

6 David T.
Stieglitz

Member Yes Strategic
Planning
Committee
Chair

Election Date-7/7/2011
# of Terms-1
2 Years
Resigned 7/15/2013

Strategic
Planning
Academic

7 Lyle
Wallace

Treasurer Yes Finance
Committee
Chair

Election Date-7/1/2012
# of Terms-1
Terms Served-1 Year
Expires- 7/1/2015

Execuitive
Strategic
Planning
Finance

8

9

10
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11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

2. Total Number of Members Joining Board during the 2012-13 school year

5

3. Total Number of Members Departing the Board during the 2012-13 school year

6

4. According to the School's by-laws, what is the maximum number of trustees that may
comprise the governing board?

11

5. How many times did the Board meet during the 2012-13 school year?

15

6. How many times will the Board meet during the 2013-14 school year?

12

Thank you.



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Annual Board of Trustees Meeting 

July 12, 2012, 8:00 AM. 275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Leslie Cohan; Kristine Graham, Mike Helman; Pamela King; Rachael Martin; 

Brenda McDuffie; and Richard Morrisroe.  

Trustees Excused: Dr. Richard Lee; David Stieglitz; and Kristy Witkowski. 

Final Candidate Present:  Michelle Williams 

Staff Present: Jill Norton, CEO; Heather Lyon, CAO; Andrew Starr, CIO; Stanley Simmons, 

Dean of Students; Nancy Krug, Business Manager, Lisa Yonksky, Office Manager and Justine 

LeFauve, Secretary. 

Also Present:  Jill Shahen, Elevate 

 

The meeting was called to order at 8:08 AM by Chair McDuffie. 

A quorum of 8 was established at 8:08 AM. 

Public Notice was confirmed. 
 

Chair McDuffie welcomed Michelle Williams as a voting Trustee and announced her approval as 

ECS Trustee by the State Education Department. 

 

Ms. Norton gave a brief review of the 9th year of Enterprise Charter School.  She noted 

specifically that ECS has been successful with student achievement especially with those who 

need us most and maintaining our highest performing students. The Gifted and Talented 

program was reinstated and the National Junior Honor Society continues to attract students.  

She expects that next year, ECS will be a school in good standing.  This year’s test scores are 

due out on 7/17/12 and although embargoed, she can share with the Board of Trustees when 

they are received.  Ms. Norton reminded the Trustees of all of the work going on behind the 

scene, with 4 major grants requirements being fulfilled, with Ms. Krug keeping ECS on track.  

Ms. Norton announced a recommended time change for the school day, offering teachers more 

prep time with shorter days for students.  She also pointed out that ECS is fiscally sound and 

supporting the school’s efforts and that ECS is working hard to comply with the General 

Municipal Law. 

 

Ms. Norton announced that the law firm of Damon Morey is presenting a breakfast briefing on 

“Charter School Board Compliance” on 7/25/12 at 7:30 AM and encouraged Trustees to 

attend. 

Ms. Norton also announced that Mr. Stieglitz will head up a new Strategic Planning committee. 

 

Chair McDuffie reviewed the documents to be considered at this annual meeting. 

Several questions of clarification of the last draft of the Bylaws, specifically the section on page 4 

dealing with the Liaison positions, came up.  In order to bring ECS into compliance with 

General Municipal Law, teachers will no longer serve as voting trustees.  Faculty Liaisons will be 

appointed and the bylaws are not clear on who is eligible and qualified.  ECS’s attorney will be 

asked to rephrase the section. 

No vote on the Bylaws was taken. 

 



On a motion by Mr. Helman, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

Conflict of Interest Policy was adopted. 

 

On a motion by Ms. King, second by Mr. Helman, with all in favor and no abstentions, the Code 

of Ethics was adopted. 

 

Mr. Morrisroe, Chairman of the Nominating Committee for Trustees, presented the slate of 

nominees as Trustees for 1 At-large and 1 Parent Trustee for 3 year terms. 

 Richard Morrisroe, at large 

 Rachel Martin, parent 

 There were no additional nominations from the floor. 

 

On a motion by Mr. Morrisroe, second by Ms. McDuffie, with all in favor and no abstentions 

the slate was elected to the Board of Trustees, with term expiring in 2015 

 

 The Enterprise Charter School’s Board of Trustees voted to select David T. Cantaffa 
Ph.D as the final candidate to its Board of Trustees, with a term expiring on 7/1/2013, pending 

approval by SED.  The resolution approving David T. Cantaffa, Ph.D.  is formally adopted upon 

SED’s approval.    

 The Enterprise Charter School’s Board of Trustees voted to select Lyle Wallace as the 

final candidate to its Board of Trustees, with a term expiring on 7/1/2015, pending approval by 

SED.  The resolution approving Lyle Wallace.  is formally adopted upon SED’s approval.  

 

Mr. Helman declined the nomination for President. 

Mr. Morrisroe presented the following slate of Officers for 2012-2013. 

President:  Richard Morrisroe 

Vice-President:  Pamela King 

Treasurer:  Mike Helman 

Secretary:  Rachel Martin 

There were no nominations from the floor.   

On a motion by Ms. McDuffie, the nominations were closed. 

The slate of Officers for 2012-2013 were elected on the Nominating Committee’s 

recommendation. 

It was announced that any officer can co-sign checks requiring a 2nd signature. 

 

On a motion by Mr. Helman, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

Standard Form Banking Resolution was approved. 

 

Newly elected Chairman of the Board of Trustees, Richard Morrisroe, asked current 

Committee Chairs to continue as chairs of the same committees. 

Academic:  Pamela King 

Finance:  Mike Helman 

HR/Personnel:  Rachel Martin 

Renewal:  Pamela King 

Strategic Planning:  David Stieglitz 

Executive Committee includes the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Treasurer, Secretary and Chair of 



the HR/Personnel Committee. 

 

Ms. Norton reported that she will send out a Doodle to poll the Board for the best meeting 

time for the regular monthly Trustee’s meeting. 

 

Mr. Helman offered his gratitude to the out-going officers. 

It was believed that Ms. Graham & Ms. Witkowski remain on the board until their successors 

are named and continue as voting members. 

 

On a motion by Mr. Helman, second by Ms. King, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

Annual Meeting was adjourned at 8:56AM 

 

 

 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of Enterprise Charter School, was present 
at the Annual Meeting held 7/12/12 at which time a quorum was present.  I verify that the 

foregoing minutes are accurate.  

 

__________________________ 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

July 12, 2012, 8:00 AM. 275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Leslie Cohan; Kristine Graham, Mike Helman; Pamela King; Rachael Martin; 

Brenda McDuffie; Richard Morrisroe; and Michelle Williams.  

Trustees Excused: Dr. Richard Lee; David Stieglitz; and Kristy Witkowski. 

Staff Present: Jill Norton, CEO; Heather Lyon, CAO; Andrew Starr, CIO; Stanley Simmons, 

Dean of Students; Nancy Krug, Business Manager, Lisa Yonksky, Office Manager and Justine 

LeFauve, Secretary. 

Also Present:  Jill Shahen, Elevate 

 

The meeting was called to order at 9:06 AM by Chairman Morrisoe. 

A quorum of 7 was established at 9:06 AM. 

Public Notice was confirmed. 

 
The minutes of the 6/7/12 were approved as amended on a motion by Mr. Helman, second by 

Ms. Martin. 

  

Ms. Jill Shahen of Elevate reviewed some of the Renewal Options, noting that SED would accept 

a Restructuring Charter Renewal. It was suggested that Jan Barrett and her company (business 

consultants) might be interested in assisting with a restructuring and will be contacted. 

The NYS assessment scores should be available on Tuesday and will help to determine how 

ECS will move forward.  Ms. Shahen went on to say that she is sure that SED would work with 

them (Elevate) to prepare a restructuring plan and explained the process.  Ms. Shahen also 

pointed out that ECS is at deadline for a decision on how they will proceed and added that 

Elevate will not charge extra for re-writing the renewal as a restructure.  The big decision will 

be, if the scores are high enough, whether to move forward with a regular renewal or 

restructure. It was reiterated that restructuring will mean a full turnover of the Board of 

Trustees, all employees will be terminated and interviewed for possible re-hire using a new 

compensation plan, a new curriculum and assessment process. 

 

It was decided to cancel the meeting of the Renewal Committee and replace it with a full Board 

of Trustees meeting on Friday, 7/20/12 at 8 AM. 

 

Mr. Starr reviewed the data dashboard. 

Ms. Norton announced that the Teacher Handbook, with some significant changes, is still being 

worked on. 

 

Mr. Simmons reported on an updated Code of Conduct, as influenced by the NY State Dignity 

Act and includes an amendment to the Harassment Policy.  Mrs. Stasio was appointed as the 

Dignity Act Liaison. 

 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Ms. King, will all in favor and no abstentions, the Board 

of Trustees accepted the updates to the Code of Conduct. 

The May 31, 2012 Financial Statements were referred to the Finance Committee. 



 

On a motion by Ms. Cohan, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

following contracts were approved with: 

 

City of Buffalo Board of Education Food Service Contract for the 2012-2013 school year as 

described on the “Agreement on Provision of Food Services”.  

 

Kirisits and Associates for general accounting and bookkeeping services from July 1, 2012 to 

June 30, 2012 at a contract rates of $95.00 per hour not to exceed $3000 per month. 

 

Gym Equipment & Specialities of New York to install 12660 Telescoping Stands/RS Bleachers at 

a contract rate of $16,950.00, with funding through the Margaret Wendt Foundation Grant. 

 

Ms. Norton reported resignations from 4 teachers, including one ESL teachers, two Elementary 

teachers and a Social Studies teacher. 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Ms. Graham, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 
resignations were accepted. 

 

Ms. Norton reported that there were ±22 changes to the Employee Handbook, and reviewed 

most significant items, with final language being worked on with the help of Mr. Miller and Mr. 

Baldwin. 

On a motion by Ms. Cohan, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

Employee Handbook was approved as amended. 

 

Ms. Norton reported that the transportation issue with Buffalo Public Schools was settled and 

that the $141,750.00 payment to ECS includes ½ the interest. 

 

The enrollment report reflected that ECS is at capacity. 

 

On a motion by Ms. King, second by Ms. Williams, with all in favor and no abstentions, a 

reimbursement of $12.95 to Ms. Norton was approved. 

 

On a motion by Ms. Graham, second by Ms. King, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 10:44AM. 

 

Ms. Norton agreed to set up a Doodle inquiry for regular meeting times for 2012-13. 

 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of Enterprise Charter School, was present 

at the Regular Meeting held 7/12/12 at which time a quorum was present.  I verify that the 

foregoing minutes are accurate.  

 

__________________________ 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees  

 

 



 

Enterprise Charter School, Special Meeting of Board of Trustees  

8/13/12 meeting, 8:00 AM 

 

Members Present: David Cantaffa; Pam King; Dr. Richard Lee; Rachel Martin; Richard 

Morrisroe; David Stieglitz; and Michelle Williams. 

Member Excused: Lyle Wallace 

Members Absent: Leslie Cohan; Mike Helman; Brenda McDuffie;. 

Also Present: Kristine Graham; Kristy Witkowski.  

Staff Present: Dr. Heather Lyon, CAO; Jill Norton, CEO; and Justine LeFauve, Secretary 

The meeting was called to order at 8:12 AM by Chairman Morrisroe. 

A quorum of 7 members was established. 

Proof of Public Notice was confirmed.  

 

Ms. Norton reported that, in terms of renewal, there really is only one option available to 

Enterprise Charter School (ECS).  That is restructuring.  
 

Ms. Norton and Chairman Morrisroe met with NYSCSA in Albany and spent time illustrating 

the conditions that exist in Buffalo and in particular at ECS.  They pointed out that if ECS 

closes, the only option for our students would be to go to failing Buffalo Public Schools.  SED 

decisions are based on mandates of Race to the Top funding which requires high levels of 

performance by our students.  They illustrated the efforts that ECS has made towards 

improved academics and noted that success at ECS is only a matter of timing. 

Ms. Norton reported that Section 4 of the Renewal Application outlines the typical turn-around 

plan and that it will be a complete upheaval of ECS, except for the students.  The renewal 

application goes to Buffalo tomorrow, and they will see that ECS is committed to seeing our 

students performing at a high level.  While it is our only option, it is not a bad one in that 

additional support & resources will be available.  This year the Strategic Plan will focus on 

monitoring of our work. 

Under the restructuring plan, all employees will have to re-apply, to the new Board of Trustees, 

for their jobs.  We are not waiting for renewal to begin, but have already started and have 3 

potential candidates for the Board of Trustees.  Ms. Aretha Miller, from the Venn Group, will 

be our watchdog and will also be working with the leadership term.  If successful, this process 

could be a plan that Buffalo Public Schools (BPS) could use for their failing schools. 

 

Chairman Morrisroe feels that their conversations in Albany have helped to clarify the situation 

here in WNY and is hopeful that Albany will reassess their criteria to determine a Charter 

school’s status and not use just test scores.  He also noted that we need to make BPS of what 

we do and how we do it. 

 

Ms. Norton announced that ECS will request permission to add 20 additional students, at the 

kindergarten level, in order to accommodate unforeseen additional expenses to cover training, 

etc. for the turn-around. 

 

At 8:36 AM, on a motion by Ms. King, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no 

abstentions, the Board of Trustees entered Executive Session to discuss personnel issues.  



Administrators were excused. 

At 9:01 AM, on a motion by Ms. King, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no 

abstentions, the Board of Trustees came out of executive Session. 

 

Ms. Graham and Ms. Witkowski left the meeting to begin the first day of school for ECS for 

2012-2013. 

 

Chairman Morrisroe asked Ms. Norton to have Section 4 clarified to indicate that ALL 

employees would need to re-apply for their positions. 

 

Dr. Cantaffa had several questions related to Section 4 that were resolved. 

 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Dr. Lee, with all in favor and no abstentions, the Board 

of Trustees acknowledged that future Trustees to this board require the approval of our 

authorizer, the Buffalo Board of Education. 

 
On a motion by Dr. Lee, second by Mr. Stieglitz, with all in favor and no abstentions, Dr. 

Cantaffa and Mr. Wallace were welcomed as the newest members of the Board of Trustees, 

having received the approval of our authorizer. 

 

On a motion by Ms. King, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

Charter Renewal Application was approved. 

 

In Ms. Witkowski’s absence, Chairman Morrisroe reviewed the process that has been 

recommended to elect 2 Teacher Liaison representatives to the attend Board of Trustee 

meetings. It includes a required 3 year employment with ECS and a record of good standing.  

The teachers will vote and the school business manager will count the votes. 

On a motion by Ms. King, second by Ms Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

Teacher Liaison selection process was approved. 

 

The minutes of the 7/20/12 Special Meeting were approved as amended on a motion by Mr. 

Stieglitz, second by Ms. King, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

There was brief discussion of  prospective new meeting times that would accommodate the 

Teacher Liaison’s teaching schedule.  Ms. Norton will put out a doodle to check with Trustees 

on their preferences. 

 

At 9:26AM, on a motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no 

abstentions, the meeting was adjourned. 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 8/13/12.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate.  

 

__________________________ 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 

 



 
ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

August 2, 2012, 8:00 AM. 275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Leslie Cohan; Kristine Graham, Pamela King; Rachael Martin; Richard 

Morrisroe; David Stieglitz; and Kristy Witkowski.  

Trustees Excused: Mike Helman; Dr. Richard Lee;. 

Trustee Absent:  Brenda McDuffie; Michelle Williams. 

Final Candidates Present:  Dr. David Cantaffa and Lyle Wallace. 

Staff Present: Jill Norton, CEO; Andrew Starr, CIO; Stanley Simmons, Dean of Students; Nancy 

Krug, Business Manager, Kevin von der Emptem, Chief Custodian; and Justine LeFauve, 

Secretary. 

Also Present:  John Taylor, President, Elevate, Atty. Jesse Baldwin 

 

The meeting was called to order at 8:05 AM by Chairman Morrisroe. 
A quorum of 6 was established at 8:05 AM. 

Public Notice was confirmed. 

 

The minutes of the 7/12/12 Annual Meeting were approved as presented and the minutes of the 

7/12/12 regular meeting were approved as amended on a motion by Ms. Graham, second by 

Mr. Stieglitz, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

Academic: 

Mr. Starr reviewed Dr. Lyon’s report in her absence, noting that she is confident of higher 

achievement in the 2012-2013 school year.  Mr. Starr also reviewed the interview process for 

new hires.  Mr. Starr discussed the 2011-2012 ECS NYS Assessment Comparison Chart and 

answered questions.  Ms. Norton will send a template of disaggregated data. 

 

Dean of Students: 

Mr. Simmons reported that a pilot program, Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports 

(PBIS), is customized for ECS.  It will empower the teachers and change the climate/culture of 

the school.  It is a data heavy program and will take ±2 years to see results.  Training will begin 

on Monday. 

 

Financial: 

In Mr. Helman’s absence, Mr. Morrisroe reviewed the financial statements.  Ms. Norton noted 

that ECS is in good financial standing with the banks with a BBB rating. 

 

Ms. Norton reported that the Accounting Manual was updated to include the use of the ECS 

truck by Mr. von der Emptem and herself. 

On a motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Ms. Witkowski, with all in favor and no abstentions the 

Financial Statements were accepted as presented. 

 

On a motion by Ms. King, second by Ms. Witkowski, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 



Cell Phone Policy for Ms. Pineiro, Ms. Norton, Mr. von de Empten, Ms. Lyon and Mr. Simmons 

for 2012-2013 Academic Year was approved. 

 

On a motion by Ms. Witkowski, second by Ms. Cohan, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

check signing policy was amended so that only one signature is required on those checks which 

are of recurring and routine nature and exceed the $5000 existing limit.  Ms. Norton noted 

that there is $75,000.00 in an escrow account in case of  dissolution.  

 

On a motion by Ms. Witkowski, second by Ms. Graham, with all in favor and no abstentions, 

the authorization of credit cards for the Operations Manager and the Chief Custodian was 

approved.  It was noted that the Master Business Cards have been changed from HSBC to First 

Niagara due to the closure of the HSBC braches in the area. 

 

Mr. von der Empten reported that a proposal to repair the roof is still being investigated by the 

architect. 

 
Legal: 

Mr. Baldwin reported that the Board Liaison position is for the purpose of communication.  No 

staff member may serve as Trustee and it is no longer a Board position.  The process to select 

the liaisons is still to be determined but will most likely include qualifications such as years of 

service and good standing status. 

 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Mr. Stieglitz, with all in favor and no abstentions the 

Board of Trustees approved the By-Laws. 

 

It was noted that Ms. Graham & Ms. Witkowski may continue to vote and count towards a 

quorum until the Final Candidates are approved. 

 

On a motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Ms. Graham, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

following teachers were approved for hiring: 

Kelly Staley-Level 2 

Lauren Bosius - Level 3 

Ian Lewis - Level 3 

Michael O'Sullivan - Soc Studies 

David Schmidt - Phys Ed 

Marisa Adams - Reading 

Kathryn Nicosia – Reading 

Interviews will continue. 

 

Chairman Morrisroe reviewed the meeting held with Ms. Norton and Mr. Taylor and reported 

that progress is being made.  He announced that Aretha Miller with the Venn Group would 

conduct an evaluation and make recommendations for the modification of the current program.  

Ms. Norton recommended that Ms. Miller report directly to the Board of Trustees.  The 

Charter Renewal Application will be submitted to ECS Authorizer, the Buffalo Board of 

Education and will include the turn around plan. 

Mr. Taylor stated that NYCSA/Elevate are trying to keep all of our Charter schools. 



 

Mr. Taylor went on to say that Charter Schools have to be better and that Common Core 

Standards must be met.  With the renewal due in two weeks, changes should be implemented 

now.  He noted that ECS has a strong infrastructure but that accountability structures need 

tweaking.  Using a target of 75%-100% in ELA, the turnaround has to be started now. 

 

Ms. Norton stated the focus must be on Board Governance and Academics and she is looking 

for Aretha Miller with the Venn group to begin immediately.  Ms. Miller will do a “paper 

review” of ECS prior to coming for the 2.5 day evaluation.  Ms. Norton also noted that she will 

be getting Highbar in place to begin work with the Board of Trustees.  That initial expenses will 

be reflected in the RttT budget line Mr. Taylor reiterated the need to install best practices asap.  

Ms. Norton prefers to have a face-to-face conversation with parents and expects that to 

happen at Welcome Back Night. 

 

Other groups to assist with a restructuring have been contacted/considered and have been 

found to be unavailable. 
 

All employees will have to re-apply for their positions. 

 

On a motion by M. Witkowski, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

contract with The Venn Group was approved in the amount of $13,500. 

 

The Teacher Improvement Plan (TIP) is being updated and should be ready soon. 

 

ECS will be notified in at least 90 prior to the end of the current charter if the renewal has 

been granted. 

 

Ms. Norton noted that the new hires will be subject to Emergency Conditional Appointments 

and that the school is fully enrolled. 

 

On a motion by Ms. Graham, second by Ms. King, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 10:20AM. 

 

 

 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 8/2/12.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate.  

 

__________________________ 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

September 10, 2012, 5:00 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Pamela King; Dr. Richard Lee; and Richard Morrisroe, 

Chairman  

Trustees Excused: David Stieglitz and Lyle Wallace 

Trustee Absent: Leslie Cohan; Rachael Martin; Brenda McDuffie; and 

Michelle Williams. 

Liaison Present: Kristine Graham; and Kristy Witkowski.  

Staff Present: Dr. Heather Lyon, AO;  Jill Norton, CEO; Stanley Simmons, Dean of Students; 

Andrew Starr, CIO;  Kevin von der Emptem and Justine LeFauve, Secretary. 

Also Present: Atty. Jesse Baldwin; Lisa Kirisits, Accountant 

 

The meeting began at 5:15 PM. 

A quorum was not established. 
Public Notice was confirmed. 

 

Ms. Witkowski reviewed the process and selection of Staff Liaisons. There will be one from the 

instructional staff and one non-instructional staff person.  They will have served ECS for a 

minimum of 3 years and be a member in good standing. Eligibility is still being worked on. 

Ms. Graham asked about the criteria for APPR and was told that it is a holistic approach with a 

60/20/20 break down.  A delay in the completion of this is because the scores were just 

received. 

Ms. Norton stated that the State will be identifying the teachers as being Developing or 

Ineffective and require that they have Teacher Improvement Plan, adding that it has been pre-

determined by the State for this year.  This will be discussed by the HR Committee. 

Ms. Witkowski was told that if there are no non-instructional staff interested that two 

instructional staff will do.   

Mr. Baldwin stated that there were no legal reasons to not move forward.  He reviewed the 

new law regarding why no teachers could serve as Trustees.  The Board decided that staff 

liaisons would not participate in Executive Session with confidential issues and have no vote.  

 

Ms. Norton reported the change of enrichment time to the beginning of the day.  One club is 

planning on producing a recipe collection and invited Trustees to submit recipes. 

 

The contract with Nick Timpone, Primavera Professional Development, LLC will be presented 

to the HR Committee. Aretha Miller will be focused at the macro level while Primavera would 

work at the micro level. Ms. Norton noted that not all teachers would be involved, that the 

small, targeted group would be based on the HEDI categories.  Miss Graham expressed 

concern over the lack of privacy and days out of the classrooms. 

Other contracts that were not approved due to the lack of a quorum include The Highbar 

Board Smart and the NY Charter Schools Association. 

  

Dr. Cantaffa pointed out that the full Board must be willing to do the work and that individual 

training is not effective.  If was further noted that Board Development is a high priority and 



requires a high level of commitment and will raise the level of accountability.  Chairman 

Morrisroe recommends holding off until new Board members are on board and Ms. Norton 

added that restructuring will include a turn over of the Board.  She added that our by-laws call 

for 9-11 members so we are still in compliance.  Ms. King reported that she attended a 6-day 

training by the United Way and thinks they do a good job. 

 

Ms. Norton pointed out the need for a strategic plan and Board self-analysis to be part of 

regular practice for ECS.  Chairman Morrisroe suggested an interim step of a Board In-Service 

for 2-3 hours on a Saturday morning.  Ms. King will follow up with the United Way to see if 

they can do this type of training. 

 

Dr. Lyon announced that Family Fun Night would be 9/27/12 and invited Trustees to attend.  

Dr. Cantaffa stressed the importance of Trustees “being here”. The Trustees will receive an 

email invitation to Family Fun Night. 

 

Academic:  Dr. Lyon distributed a list of Changes for the 12/13 year and the ECS Calendar for 
2012-2013.  Aretha Miller will be here on 9/24-25/12.  We should have an  answer from Buffalo 

on the renewal 90 days from the submission. 

 

Financial: 

Ms. Norton noted that Ms. Kirisits does a good job, with the least amount of movement of 

funds.  The Kirisits contract is on the table and it was reported that the bill for July is over the 

contracted dollar amount due to additional time spent on the Annual Audit. 

 

There is a $201.36 bill to be approved for expenses for trip to Albany by Ms. Norton and 

Chairman Morrisroe. 

 

Due to Mr. Helman resignation, new bank signature cards need to be signed. 

 

Ms. Kirisits reviewed changes to the Operating/Capital Budget (Recast version) to right size 

salaries, primarily for office staff.  This increase will go to the Audit/Finance committee for 

recommendation. She also reviewed other Financial Reports. 

 

Dr. Lyon distributed and reviewed  her  Acknowledge/Incentivize Employee Attendance 

Program that is part of “Operation Steroid”.   

 

Ms. Norton pointed out that the Long Range Plan and the Strategic Plan should dove-tail, noting 

that the Strategic Plan will deal with overall resources for ECS. 

A Board/Staff morning meeting will be planned to discuss renewal and longevity. 

 

Mr. von der Emptem reported that the roof replacement will be done next year during the 

summer and will take 4-5 weeks to complete.  It is too disruptive to do during the school year. 

 

Ms. Norton added that there are some other things memorialized in the recast budget, 

including the number of ESL teachers for the school year based on how many of the students 

are de-classified and number of new needs.  The enrollment is at 405.  



 

Melissa Streiff, VP of the PTA is looking to use some Title I funding to help increase parent 

involvement with ECS.  Chairman Morrisroe asked about Home visits as a pilot program.  Ms. 

Norton will work the idea into Family Fun Night. 

 

Chairman Morrisroe stressed the need to build a good Board and involve parents. 

 

A poll will be taken to determine the next meeting date, as the second Monday is a holiday. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:50PM 

 

 

I, Richard Morrisroe, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at 

a meeting held 9/10/12.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate.  

 

__________________________ 
Richard Morrisroe, Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

October 8, 2012, 5:00 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Pamela King; Rachael Martin; David Stieglitz; Lyle Wallace 

and Michelle Williams. 

Trustees Excused: Richard Morrisroe, Chairman.  

Trustees Absent: Leslie Cohan; and Brenda McDuffie;  

Liaison Present: Kristine Graham.  

Staff Present: Jill Norton, CEO; Stanley Simmons, Dean of Students; Lisa Yonkosky, Office 

Manager, Nancy Krug, Operations Manager and Justine LeFauve, Secretary. 

Also Present:  Lisa Kirisits, Consultant 

 

The meeting was called to order by Ms. King, Vice Chairman, at 5:15PM with a quorum present 

at 5:15PM. 

Public Notice was confirmed. 
 

The minutes of the 8/2/12 & 8/13/12 meetings were approved as presented and the minutes of 

the 9/10/12 meeting were approved as amended on a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Mr. 

Stieglitz, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

Ms. Norton reported that Mr. Morrisroe, Dr. Cantaffa and Ms. King have been getting really 

involved with ECS, have met with Aretha Miller and will take on arranging for the necessary 

Board Training and other Governance Issues.  Ms. Norton also reported on the site visit by 

Buffalo and is expecting a report by mid-October, adding that there are technical errors to be 

corrected on the Renewal Application.  There is a hearing being held Wednesday at 4:30PM in 

Room 801, City Hall and Ms. Norton encouraged everyone to attend, if possible.  Parents are 

being contacted about attending via several venues.  It is expected that the BOE will vote at the 

end of November (11/28/12), then send it to SED and they have 90 days to present to the 

Board of Regents.  There is not a 90 day requirement for Buffalo’s action. (It is not required for 

the authorizer’s review).  It was noted that the BOE denied ECS’ request to change hours of 

operation and recommended it be part of the renewal. 

 

Financial Issues: 

It was noted that the 2012-2013 budget was approved at the 5/9/12 meeting. 

 

The Financial Reports for 5/31/12, 6/30/12 and 7/31/12 were approved on a motion by Ms. 

Martin, second by Mr. Stieglitz, with all in favor, including one abstention.  The Financial Reports 

for August & September as well as the year-end report will be presented at the November 

meeting.  Ms. Kirisits noted that some auditor’s findings needed clarification, but it will be a 

clean audit, with no negative findings. 

 

The Audit/Finance Committee reviewed and recommends payment of the two invoices for 

Kirisits & Associates.  July and August invoices include extra time on the year-end audit and 

preparations for the renewal applications. 

 



The Audit/Finance Committee recommends the payment of $6075.00 for Advocacy Dues to 

NY Charter Schools Association. 

 

Approval was asked for a contract with HighBar in the amount of $7000.  It is a Board Training 

Tool that includes Board Self Evaluation.  It is a good value for our transitioning board. It was 

noted that the HighBar contract did not come to the Board of Trustees via the Audit/Finance 

/committee. 

On a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor the Kirisits invoices, the 

contract with NYC Schools Association and High Bar were approved. 

 

There was brief discussion of the Accounting Procedures Manual and it was noted that it has 

not been ECS practice to have Board approval of any changes 

 

Mr. Simmons noted that the data collection on behavior management and school culture 

continue.  He is looking at trends to better communicate with parents.  Mr. Stieglitz noted the 

current interest in behavior and nutrition, adding that it could become a way to modifying 
behaviors.  Dr. Cantaffa asked for a full report, with as much detail as possible on the 

categories of suspension, formal suspension and expulsion including issues of the context of 

outside influences like assessments, site visits, etc.  Ms. Graham reminded that that the report 

should be done by race/gender, whether teacher or student and without names. 

 

Ms. Norton recommends the hiring of Sarah Fowler, with the start date of 9/25/12.  On a 

motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

recommendation to hire Ms. Fowler was approved. 

 

Ms. Norton reported on the right sizing of staff salaries.  Ms. Norton recommends a 10% 

increase for non-instructional staff.  It would be budget neutral.  On a motion by Mr. Stieglitz 

second by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 10% salary increase for non-

instructional staff was approved. 

 

Ms. Norton recommends changing Ms. Yonkosky to a full time position.  She will relieve Dr. 

Lyon of some responsibilities like covering the call in of subs, and will be involved in the hiring 

process.  On a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no 

abstentions, the Board approved Ms. Yonkosky to full-time status. 

 

Academic Committee: 

Referred to Dr. Lyon’s report, noting that it is informational and does not require any action.  

There was discussion regarding assessment days and Dr. Cantaffa will have a graduate assistant 

do some research on whether Mondays & Fridays should be used for assessments.  Ms. Norton 

stated that there is a purpose for all of the assessments. 

 

The Strategic Plan was put on hold. 

 

HR/Personnel Committee: 

Dr. Cantaffa reported that there is still a lot to be discussed regarding the Teacher 

Improvement Plans (TIP) and how they will be handled, what the timeline is, etc.  There will be 



a number of resources available and it is yet to be determined how those on a TIP will be 

supported.  

 

There were no Emergency Conditional Appointments. 

 

ECS is fully enrolled. 

 

Invitations to a Charter School Conference being held by Hodson Russ Attorneys were 

distributed.  It will be on Tuesday, 10/23/12 from 9am –noon. 

 

 

New Business:   

On a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Ms. Martin with all in favor and no abstentions, Dr. 

Richard Lee’s letter of resignation was accepted with regret. 

 

It was noted that a letter of resignation has not yet been received from Brenda McDuffie, 
 

 

 

On a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Ms. Williams, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 7:00 PM. 

 

 

 

 

  

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 10/8/12.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate.  

 

__________________________ 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

November 5, 2012, 5:00 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Pamela King; Rachael Martin; Richard Morrisroe, 

Chairman; David Stieglitz; Lyle Wallace and Michelle Williams. 

Trustees Absent: Leslie Cohan; and Brenda McDuffie;  

Liaison Present: Kristine Graham.  

Staff Present: Jill Norton, CEO; Andrew Starr, CIO; Nancy Krug, Operations Manager and 

Justine LeFauve, Secretary. 

Also Present:  Patricia Pitts, CEI and Paulette Gandel, PICCS 

Teachers/Staff Present:  Kevin von der Empten; Anne Gugliuzza; Melissa Streiff; and Jeff 

Reinhardt.  

 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Richard Morrisroe, Chairman, at 5:04 PM with a 

quorum present of 6 at 5:04 PM. 
Public Notice was confirmed. 

 

The minutes of the 10/8/12 meeting of the Board of Trustees were approved as amended and 

the minutes of the 6/11/12 meeting of the Charter Renewal Committee were approved on a 

motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Ms. Williams, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

Ms. Norton welcomed the visitors from PICCS. 

 

Director’s Report:  Jill Norton 

Ms. Norton reported that corrections were made on the Renewal Application and return to 

Buffalo Board of Education (BOE).  A response will be drafted to the Site Visit Report with 

edits to facts stated and submitted by 11/14/12.  Angela Cullen has suggested that ECS may be 

on the BOE agenda for 12/12/12 and Ms. Norton noted that it would be in our best interest to 

contact BOE members that we know.  She has requested parent testimonials via students. 

 

Ms. Norton distributed folders and assigned “homework” to Trustees regarding the High Bar, 

Board On Track Program, and reminded all that future notification will be delivered using that 

system.  She also recommended that Trustees go to the High Bar Site and take the 

assessments. 

 

Academic Presentation:  Andy Starr 

Mr. Starr reviewed Dr. Lyon’s monthly report that was distributed in the Board Packet. 

Ms. Norton reported that there is a Professional Development Session on the Danielson 

framework that is being offered via the PICCS grant.  There is a Network Team of all local 

Charter Schools for training and guidance.  Discussion related to Student Learning Objectives 

(SLO’s) ended with additional questions to be answered.  A meeting with Dr. Lyon will be set 

regarding Response to Intervention (RIT).  The Data Analysis Survey for November will go to 

the next Academic Excellence Committee meeting.  The Progress Monitoring period ends 

12/13/12 and report cards go out tomorrow. 

 



Dean of Students Report:  Reviewed by Mr. Starr 

Mr.  Simmons’ October 2012 Suspension Data was discussed and Ms. Norton will ask for a 

comparison with last year.  Mr. Stieglitz recommended that a program be developed to bring 

new students into sync with the school culture to help to reduce the number of incidents.  Ms. 

Williams would like to know how these numbers compare to other Charter Schools and how 

many students may be at Enterprise as a “new start”.  Ms. Gugliuzza pointed out that several of 

the students have memory/cognitive issues as part of their disability. 

 

Legal, Operations and Personnel: 

On a motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

resignations of Mr. Helman and Ms. Cohan were accepted with regret.  

It was also noted that Ms. Streiff has resigned. 

 

Committee Reports: 

Academic Committee:  Mr. Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe reported that he expects High Bar to help with Infrastructure Building and 
assisting the Board to identify and parse out tasks as per Trustee skill sets. 

On a motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Mr. Wallace, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

change of chairmanships of the Academic and Personnel Committees was ratified.   Dr. Cantaffa 

will now serve as Vice Chair of the Board of Trustees and Chair of the Academic Committee 

and Ms. King will serve as Chair of the Personnel Committee. 

Dr. Cantaffa would like to see a Comprehensive Assessment Plan that includes what tests ECS 

uses and what they are for, as well as other options. 

 

Audit and Finance Committee:  Lyle Wallace 

The Audit/Finance Committee recommends the payment of Ms. Norton’s expenses for the 

SUPES Academy of $78.30 to the Board. 

The August and September Financial Reports were approved as received on a motion by Dr. 

Cantaffa, second by Mr. Stieglitz, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

The Accounting Policy and Procedure Manual has been reviewed and amended by Ms. Krug and 

she was offered the appreciation of the Board of Trustees. 

The Board formally accepted the Audit as presented, noting that a late adjustment had been 

made, on a motion by Mr. Wallace, second by Dr. Cantaffa, with 6 in favor and 1 abstention.  

An Unqualified Opinion was offered by the Auditors, with no material findings. 

Mr. Morrisroe, noting that the ECS financial house is in order, asked where/how best to make 

some new investment in Academics.  Ms. Norton reported that when ECS was a SINI there 

were grants available.  ECS has recently applied for a Strengthening Teachers Leadership Grant 

that was not awarded to us.  She added that there is a 21st Century Grant out, that is seeking 

Priority and Focus Schools. 

 

Executive Committee:  Mr. Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe noted our focus to be implementing High Bar and expects it to build capacity, 

help our training and provide clarity.  AND it is underway. 

 

Personnel:  Dr. Cantaffa 

Dr. Cantaffa reported that a new letter will be prepared by the sub-committee, to inform on 



how the HEDI scores will be arrived at.  It will honor the ranges that staff held last year.  

Ineffective or Developing teachers will have a Teacher Improvement Plan (TIP) or a Teacher 

Support Plan (TSP).  The matter has been resolved for the 2011-2012 school year.  The 2012-

2013 school year HEDI still awaits the finalization of the SLOs.  It is expected to be different 

again in the 2013-2014 school year. 

Ms. Norton noted having an Annual Professional Performance Review (APPR) would offer 

better access to funding.  Dr. Cantaffa added that it is equally important to be aware of its 

constraints, and if it tends to move us away from our Charter. Chair Morrisroe added that 

since being linked to Race to the Top (RttT) we are more like a public school and we are giving 

up some flexibility to accept PICCS funding.  It was noted that PICCS has to comply with 

Federal and State requirements, as do Charter Schools. 

There was lengthy discussion regarding the SLO’s and when they would be ready to administer. 

Ms. Witkowski pointed out that some schools have already given them. 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Mr. Wallace, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

recommendation of the sub-committee was accepted. 

 
New Business: 

Draft Site Visit Report: 

Trustees were asked to review the report and offer edits for factual information, It is due back 

to Buffalo on 11/14/12. 

 

There were no Emergency Conditional Appointments. 

 

There are currently 405 students enrolled at ECS. 

 

ECS has been invited to join the Erie County Association of School Boards.  There are shared 

training opportunities.  Charter schools are not recognized by the State School Boards 

Association.   Ms. Norton will check on the cost of membership. 

 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Ms. King, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 6:45PM. 

 

 

 

  

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 11/5/12.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate.  

 

__________________________ 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

December 10, 2012, 5:00 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Pamela King; Rachael Martin; Richard Morrisroe, 

Chairman; and David Stieglitz.  

Trustee Excused: Lyle Wallace.  

Trustees Absent: Michelle Williams. 

Liaisons Present: Kristine Graham and Kristy Witkowski.  

Staff Present: Jill Norton, CEO; Heather Lyon, CAO; Nancy Krug, Operations Manager Lisa 

Yonkosky, Office Manager and Justine LeFauve, Secretary. 

Other Staff Present:  Kevin von der Empten.  

 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Richard Morrisroe, Chairman, at 5:10 PM with a 

quorum present of 5 at 5:10 PM. 

Public Notice was confirmed. 
 

The minutes of the 11/5/12 meeting of the Board of Trustees were approved as presented, on a 

motion by Ms. King, second by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

Director’s Report:  Jill Norton 

Renewal Status Report:  

Ms. Norton reported that the 2nd Site Visit Report (SVR) was to have been reviewed and edited 

today. There are numerous corrections to be made.  It is expected that the staff 

recommendation to the Buffalo Board of Education (BOE) will be made on 12/12/12. 

Monthly Update:    

Ms. Norton reported that there is the possibility of a partnership with Gateway Longview for 

mental health services for Enterprise Charter School (ECS) students. 

A 21st Century Learning Grant is being coordinated with Buffalo State Teachers College for 

support services.  The $200,000.00 would be specifically for mentoring, including Be A Friend 

and Big Brother/Big Sister programs. 

 

Ms. Yonkosky announced that members (10) of the Student Council and Junior National Honor 

Society has been invited to Albany to learn the Electoral College process. 

 

Financial Report:  Mr. Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe reported that Ms. Kirisits and Mr. Wallace have reviewed the Financial 

Statements for period ending 10/31/12 and the Finance Committee recommends their approval.  

Ms. Norton noted that the Title I and Title II funds have just been received.  The Recast Budget 

that demonstrates the right sizing of staff was also recommended to the Board of Trustees by 

the Finance Committee. 

On a motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

Financial Statements for the period ending 10/31/12 were approved. 

On a motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor an no abstentions, the 

Recast Budget was approved. 

On a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Ms. King, with all in favor and no abstentions the re-



imbursement of cost of SUPS Academy lunch for Ms. Norton was approved. 

 

Academic Excellence:  Heather Lyon 

Dr. Lyon noted that Trustees have received her written report and that she has completed 

about ¼ of the teacher evaluation for the time period and has had pre-observation conferences 

with teachers. 

Dr. Lyon reported that the Erie County Association of School Boards have invited ECS to join 

their group, adding that until the present, Charter Schools have been excluded from the 

organization. 

 

Dean of Students:  Jill Norton 

In Mr. Simmons’ absence, Ms. Norton reviewed his report that was compiled information on 

suspensions. It was noted that ± ½ were new students to ECS and that long time students 

assist in teaching new students the culture of the school. 

The offenders are not just students in crisis, but families in crisis with chronic problems. 

Ms. Norton stated that a family orientation is done at the beginning of the school year, but that 
after that it is a quick intake.  Mr. Stieglitz pointed out the efforts to crate a residential school 

situation have not been successful. 

 

Committee Reports: 

Academic Committee: David Cantaffa 

Dr. Cantaffa thanked the Administration for the requested information that will inform the 

Comprehensive Academic Plan he is developing.  Teachers have begun the Student Learning 

Objectives (SLO) and the testing schedule is revised to add more days to the schedule. 

 

Executive Committee:  Richard Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe encouraged Trustees to use the Highbar Tool to reach better focus especially 

with all of the changes and uncertainty with the Renewal.  The Goal Setting process will be 

looked at in mid-January and reviewed again in June.  New Trustees are being sought.  Dr. 

Cantaffa recommended that Trustees read Board Meetings, A Guide for Charter Schools, and 

the assessments on Highbar.  The role of the Governance Committee is currently being filled 

by the Executive Committee and additional training is considered necessary. 

 

Finance Committee:  Jill Norton 

Ms. Norton reported for Mr. Wallace, stating that the Performance Based Compensation Plan 

payments have been called in.  It is the first of PICCS payments. 

Mr. Stieglitz, architect for the Health Now building being constructed just north of ECS, 

reported that traffic patterns were reviewed and given careful consideration in the design plan.  

Ms. Norton and Mr. von der Empten agreed that it is well planned and thought out. 

 

 

 

 

HR/Personnel:  Ms. Norton, Dr. Lyon & Ms. King 

Ms. Norton and Dr. Lyon updated the Board of Trustees regarding staff changes and efforts to 

fill out the teaching staff.  Ms. King reported that the ECS staff is looking into unionizing and 



that they continue to ask for more concrete Renewal information. 

 

Executive: 

There were no legal issues brought forward. 

 

Other Business: 

There were no Emergency Conditional Appointments. 

 

Enrollment Report:  Nancy Krug 

Ms. Krug reported that efforts continue to be made to replace the expelled students, noting 

that it is always more difficult to bring in new students later in the year.  She added that 

marketing is done mostly in the Fall & Spring but that there are sometimes special opportunities 

to advertise ECS.  Also, the marketing funding was cut from the recast budget and there is 

some question as to whether ECS has the capacity to take in more students in need of services.  

Ms. Krug also pointed out that ECS does not get extra funding for ESL services.  There are 

some students on a waiting list for 7th grade but 3rd & 7th grade lists are depleted. 
 

There was no public comment. 

 

Since there have been no candidates for the Staff Liaison position, Ms. Norton will set a 

deadline for nominations. 

 

The Annual Winter Concert will be held on 12/20/12 at 2 PM. 

 

On a motion by Ms. King, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was a adjourned at 6:37 PM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 12/10/12.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate.  

 

__________________________ 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

January 14, 2013 5:00 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Pamela King; Rachael Martin; Richard Morrisroe, 

Chairman; David Stieglitz; and Michelle Williams.  

Trustee Excused: Lyle Wallace.  

Liaisons Present: Kristine Graham and Kristy Witkowski.  

Staff Present: Jill Norton, CEO; Heather Lyon, CAO; Andrew Starr, CIO; Stanley Simmons, 

Dean of Students; Nancy Krug, Operations Manager; Lisa Yonkosky, Office Manager and Justine 

LeFauve, Secretary. 

Other Staff Present:  Kevin von der Empten.  

 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Richard Morrisroe, Chairman, at 5:03PM with a 

quorum of 5 present at 5:03PM. 

Public Notice was confirmed. 
 

The minutes of the 12/10/12 meeting of the Board of Trustees were approved as amended, on 

a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Ms. King, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

It was noted that the Audit/Finance Committee needs an additional member and Mr. Morrisroe 

is looking for a Trustee to fill the slot. 

 

Future Board Packets will be sent in hard copy to all Trustees and Ms. Norton will prepare a 

packet on High Bar with attachments. 

 

Mr. Morrisroe announced the retirement of Mrs. LeFauve, Board Secretary for the past 10 

years. 

 

Director’s Report:  Jill Norton 

Renewal Status Report:  

Ms. Norton reported that the Buffalo has recommended a 3-year Renewal for ECS but denied 

the additional 20 students that had been requested. She will be meeting with Angela Cullen with 

some questions and to begin work on the Operating Agreement.  Buffalo’s recommendation 

has been sent to SED and they have 90 days to act, and the Board of Regents will consider 

either in February or March.  The Site Visit report is attached to the recommendation.  Dr. 

Lyon noted that academics are the tipping point. Dr. Cantaffa suggested that the Academic 

Committee consider the best way to clarify the ECS methods of Education/Teaching for the 

Buffalo Board of Education. 

 

Monthly Update:  

Ms. Norton reported that the initial application to establish a Mental Health Clinic at ECS has 

been approved and we are currently waiting for State approval. It is hoped that it would start 

off in March with 3 days of service each week. 

Ms. Norton reported that the 21st Century Grant application has been submitted, noting that it 

is a strong application and should benefit our Before and After School programs.  She hopes to 



hear by April. 

 

Financial Report:  Mr. Morrisroe 

In Mr. Wallace’s absence, Mr. Morrisroe briefly reviewed the Financial reports for November 

2012 adding that they had been received/filed by the Finance Committee. 

 

On a motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Ms. Martin, with 6 in favor and Ms. King abstaining, the 

Board Resolution on grants over $10,000 was approved. 

 

Ms. Norton will amend the Scope of Work on the Race to the Top Application to receive 

balance of funds this year to make some adjustments for Professional Development needs. 

 

On a motion by Mr. Stieglitz, second by Ms. King with all in favor and no abstentions, 

reimbursement was approved for Ms. Norton in the amount of $680.00 to cover the costs of 

the trip to Albany with students for Electoral College Education.  Expenses included car rental, 

gas, parking and lunch for the students. 
 

Ms. Norton invited Trustee participation on the Day Trip to Albany to present case on 

Unfunded Mandates.  Several trustees expressed interest in attending. 

 

Academic Excellence:  Heather Lyon 

Dr. Lyon reported that all observations for the 1st half of the year will be completed by the end 

of January.  She invited Trustees to join her on a tour of the building to see what Project Based 

Learning (PBL) looks like. 

Mr. Starr distributed and reviewed the ECS Data Analysis Summary for 1/14/13 and the ECS 

Assessment Teacher Reflection.  He noted that the Literacy Teachers would like to address the 

Academic Committee.  There was discussion regarding rigor of materials, Common Core 

standards and whether programs are being implemented to full value.   Dr. Lyon pointed out 

that it is working at some levels and not at others.   

 

Dean of Students:  Stanley Simmons 

Mr. Simmons distributed and reviewed his December, 2012 Suspension report and compared it 

to stats from December, 2011.  He noted that harassing has diminished.  He went on to say 

that a number of things have been initiated to improve behaviors.  In 2011 ECS held onto 

multiple offenders.  Mr. Simmons also pointed out that our counselors are academic and not 

disciplinary.  It is expected that the process will be much improved once Gateway Longview is 

available for Tier 3 services.  Dr. Lyon noted that behaviors change from one classroom to the 

next and that it impacts a great deal on substitute teachers. Having subs shadow classroom 

teachers and seeking feed back from classroom teachers on subs were discussed. 

Mr. Simmons stated that he has added Classroom Management to his orientations. 

 

 

 

Committee Reports: 

Academic Committee: David Cantaffa 

Dr. Cantaffa reported that the committee is discussing information regarding the Honor Roll 



with Ms. Starr.  He also reviewed the areas of concern that the Academic Committee is 

discussing, noting that Trustees need to get into classrooms and become familiar with the 

Danielson Methods. 

 

Executive Committee:  Richard Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe discussed the renewal and next steps.  He reported that the Executive 

Committee will have a planning meeting and report back to the full Board.  He noted that the 

CEO evaluation will be discussed and that the CAO evaluation will be done by the CEO and 

the Chairman of the Academic Committee. 

 

Finance Committee:  Richard Morrisroe 

In Mr. Wallace’s absence, Mr. Morrisroe reported that the 990 will be coming for Trustees 

review and submission.  Ms. Kirisits will give a comparative snapshot of how we allocate 

resources compared to other charter Schools. 

 

HR/Personnel:  Ms. King 
No report 

 

Executive: 

There were no legal issues brought forward. 

 

Other Business: 

There were no Emergency Conditional Appointments. 

 

Enrollment Report:  Nancy Krug 

Ms. Krug distributed and reviewed the Month End: December 2012 Enrollment Report and 

reported that ECS is short 5 students. 

 

There was no public comment. 

 

 

On a motion by Ms. King, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 7:07 PM. 

 

 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 1/14/13.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate.  

 

__________________________ 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

February 11th, 2013 5:30 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Rachael Martin; Richard Morrisroe, Chairman; David 

Stieglitz; Michelle Williams, and Lyle Wallace.  

Liaisons Present: Kristine Graham and Linda Morgan.  

Staff Present: Heather Lyon, CAO; Stanley Simmons, Dean of Students 

Other Staff Present:  Kevin von der Empten.  

Visitors Present:  J. Baldwin (Damon & Morey) 

 

I. Opening Items 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Richard Morrisroe, Chairman, at 5:31 PM with a 

quorum of 6 present. 

Public Notice was confirmed. 

 
The minutes of the 1/14/2013 meeting of the Board of Trustees were approved as amended, on 

a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Mr. Stieglitz, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

II. Directors’s Report:  Dr. Heather Lyon 

Renewal Status Report:  

Dr. Lyon reported that Angela Cullen delivered the revised charter to Enterprise.  Jessie 

Baldwin is reviewing the document.   

 

 

III. Financial Report:  Mr. Wallace 

 

A review of the December 2012 Financials was conducted with nothing outstanding to report.  

There was an ongoing salary differential.  A motion was made by Mr. Wallace to approve the 

December 2012 Financial Report and seconded by Dr. Cantaffa with all in favor and no 

abstentions.  

 

The 990 for 2011-2012 was presented.  The document was previously reviewed in detail by Lisa 

Kirisits and Lyle Wallace.  There is nothing of material to note in terms of variances.  The only 

correction was to change the signature line from Brenda McDuffie, our former Board 

Chairperson, to Ms. Norton, our CEO, who will be signing off on the 990. Mr. Wallace made a 

motion to accept the 990, seconded by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

IV. Academic Excellence Report /Academic Excellence Committee:  Heather Lyon 

 

Dr. Lyon shared information regarding RtI and a recent visit from Jim Wright.  It was discussed 

how RtI is delivered this year versus last year.  There was a comparison regarding how ECS 

performed last year against other charters and how we have allocated Support Services versus 

other charters.  The Board was informed and invited to attend the upcoming Academic Pep 

Rally.   

 



At the Academic Committee Meeting, a presentation took place by Marisa Adams and Kate 

Nicosia, the ECS Reading Specialists. Dr. Lyon spoke regarding a comparison of support 

services at ECS as compared to other charters.  A discussion ensued regarding whether we 

need to redirect resources to support our students.  Many students have needs that are 

greater than the classroom teacher can provide and we have very few resources to support the 

needs of the children.  Assessment scores for this year were compared to the scores from last 

year.   Given that the students didn’t do well last year, we have reason for concern for how 

they will perform this year.  Though parents are thrilled with the progress that their children 

are making, it still may not be enough progress. 

 

V. Dean of Students:  Stanley Simmons 

 

Mr. Simmons shared comparison data for this year versus last year.  We have seen a decrease 

in “one student being responsible for multiple infractions”.  A student left the building and a 

discussion took place regarding how that happened as well as how we will prevent that from 

happening again.  At the January All Staff Meeting, the entire staff examined disciplinary data.  
Wednesdays appeared to be the day of the week with the most write ups.  Although our 

students are not violent, horseplay is on the rise.  The gym locker room is a hot spot for 

incidents. 

 

VI. Committee Reports: 

HR/Personnel Committee 

 

Pre-strategic planning meetings are occurring.  The Committee is discussing evaluations of the 

CEO and CAO, as well as formal ways to create board goals and recruitment goals to improve 

things going forward. Teacher Recruitment Day in Buffalo is scheduled for April.  The staff 

needs to know when/if they can apply for that.  There is nothing that needs to be stated that 

the end of this charter is a termination for employees; it can be called a lay-off due to 

restructuring.  What happens should someone be offered a job at ECS but they decline the 

offer?  How does that impact Unemployment benefits?  An employee will have a difficult time 

securing Unemployment if they declined an offer for equivalent employment. We need to move 

forward assuming that SED is going to renew us.  The word we have at this point is that the 

Regents will give strong deference to BPS’s recommendation.   The Board also needs to think 

about their own application to the position. 

 

There was a discussion about staffing updates for the replacement of Ms. Rice, the second 

grade teacher, and Mr. Schmidt, the Physical Education teacher, who have resigned.  There was 

also discussion about the Social Worker position for the replacement of the school counselor.  

There was also a broader conversation about resources to support students.  

 

 

Finance Committee:  Lyle Wallace 

 

Mr. Wallace spoke with Lisa Kirisits today.  There is nothing material to mention.  Ms. Kirisits 

and Ms. Norton will be getting together for the first pass at the 2013-2014 budget.  Should 

there be a subcommittee of the strategic planning group to look at what is needed regarding 



the budget?  We need to be mindful of being both financially and academically solvent. 

 

VII. Executive: 

There were no legal issues brought forward. 

 

VIII. Other Business: 

 

Dr. Cantaffa made a motion to accept Nicole Valint as the new second grade teacher.  The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Stieglitz with all in favor.   

 

A motion was made at 6:33 PM by Dr. Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin to go into Executive 

Session to discuss a confidential personnel matter.  At 6:51 PM, a motion was made by Dr. 

Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin to end Executive Session.   

 

Jesse Baldwin briefly went over the 3rd Renewal Operating Agreement.  This is not the 

application.  This is how the district and the ECS BOT will interact.  The “5th Where As” clause 
mentions that the PBS has satisfied the renewal.  The reason to go through the Operating 

Agreement line by line is due to a SED mandate that all charters need to use as of this year.  

The most notable point is in section 5.3.  The last paragraph is something that the BOE is 

requiring that SED does not require.  It is an internal audit and will be an additional cost to us.  

Challenging this as a condition for renewal will go nowhere.  SED will not come to our rescue if 

we say no, so there is no reason to challenge it.  It’s meant to place a little more leg work on 

us.  Under section 5.3, the last paragraph, add the word “days” after the number 30.  

Additionally, they brought up wanting us to agree to the change in the funding level per student, 

but the one in the contract states the standard funding. Ms. Martin made a motion to accept, 

with Mr. Stieglitz seconding and all in favor.  

 

Enrollment Report:  Nancy Krug 

 

Ms. Krug was not available to present the enrollment report but there was a discussion about 

how we are still attempting to fill our vacant seats.  It becomes more and more difficult as the 

year goes on as parents aren’t interested in moving students this late in the school year.  

 

There was no public comment. 

 

IX. Closing Items 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Mr. Stieglitz, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 7:28 PM. 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 2/11/2013.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate and that the board has 

approved them for publication.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Rachel Martin 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 11th, 2013 5:30 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Rachael Martin; Richard Morrisroe, Chairman; Michelle 

Williams, and Lyle Wallace.  

Trustees Excused:  David Stieglitz 

Liaisons Present: Kristine Graham and Linda Morgan.  

Staff Present: Heather Lyon, CAO; Jill Norton, CEO; Stanley Simmons, Dean of Students 

Other Staff Present:  Kevin von der Empten, Lisa Yonkosky, Nancy Krug, Kristy Witkowski 

Visitors Present:  Jesse Baldwin, Damon & Morey; Stacey Moar, Damon & Morey; Orlando 

Perez, Final Candidate for Board of Trustees 

 

I. Opening Items 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Richard Morrisroe, Chairman, at 5:40 PM with a 

quorum of 5 present. 
Public Notice was confirmed. 

 

The minutes of the 2/11/2013 meeting of the Board of Trustees were approved as amended, on 

a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Mr. Wallace, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

II. Director’s Report:  Jill Norton 

Renewal Status Report:  

Ms. Norton stated that on Tuesday, March 5
th

, she was informed by the Buffalo Board of 

Education that there was an Emergency Board Meeting taking place for Enterprise 

Charter School.  The previous unanimous 3 year renewal vote was possibly being 

withdrawn and a revote was to take place.  The meeting did occur on March 6
th

 and the 

Buffalo Board of Trustees voted for a 2 year renewal with a backup decision for 1 year if 

the two years was not accepted by the state.  There appeared to be a sense of urgency 

relative to taking this action to get the item on the Board of Regents agenda for Monday, 

March 11
th

.  That did not occur as we were not on the March 11
th

 Board of Regents 

agenda.  We have no other news after that.  A copy of the vote was requested by Ms. 

Norton.   

 

We are awaiting information on the status of the renewal from the state for the 

clarification as to when we will be on the agenda for the Board of Regents for the revised 

recommendation.  Dr. Cantaffa questioned whether we should contact Regent Bennett for 

a question/answer conversation.  Ms. Norton stated the Board of Regents does have a 

final say in the renewal process, although Bill Clark, the new Charter Schools 

representative said that the Buffalo Board of Education is our authorizer and we should 

be going to them for answers.   

 

The North East Charter School Network (NECSN) is currently seeking answers regarding 

the new framework.  How will they handle discrepancies for schools that are designated a 

school in good standing and then have issues with renewal? 

 



Monthly Update – Jill Norton 

  

Ms. Norton reported that a review took place with the Fitch Rating Company.  We   

had been rated BBB but are now rated BBB- due to our academic performance.  Of  

the 18 schools being revisited for their rating, we were 1 of 4 that maintained an  

investment grade rating. 
 

 

III. Financial Report:  Mr. Wallace 

 

The January 2013 Financials were reviewed by the Finance Committee and Mr. Wallace 

reported there was nothing material noted, there are some timing differences.  Junior 

Achievement’s rent is being renegotiated for the upcoming year.  Mrs. Kirisits, from our 

Accounting Firm, is always available should there be any further questions.  A motion was made 

by Dr. Cantaffa to approve the January 2013 Financial Report and seconded by Mr. Wallace, 

with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

The Finance Committee also reviewed bids for the roof replacement on Building B & C.  

Sahlems Roofing and Siding was recommended for the award due to the price and the fact that 

they have worked on the ECIDA building in the past.  A question arose regarding the large 
difference in pricing.  Mr. von der Empten, Custodian, stated Sahlems is a family owned business 

and therefore they don’t need to meet a union prevailing wage.   Mr. von der Empten stated he 

also spoke with ECIDA regarding this company as they did work on their roof and it was noted 

that there was a large difference in pricing on their bids as well with Sahlems as the winning 

bidder.  It was also noted that there may be additional charges due to unknown circumstances 

when the roof replacement begins.  On a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin, 

Sahlems Roofing and Siding was awarded the bid for the roof replacement for Building B & C in 

the amount of $123,820.00. 

 

The Finance Committee also reviewed bids for the replacement of Carpeting in five classrooms 

in the building.  A history of the rugs was provided. Carpet tiles are being suggested as they are 

much easier to maintain.  Allasen Carpets was recommended.  Allied Floor was $100 cheaper 

but their bid was not complete.  On a motion by Ms. Martin, seconded by Mr. Wallace, Allasen 

Carpet was awarded the Carpet Replacement Project in the amount of $14,850.00 

 

IV. Academic Excellence Report:  Heather Lyon 

 

Dr. Lyon updated the Board of Trustees on the upcoming Test Prep Family Fun Night on March 

27th from 5:15 to 7:15 PM and invited all board members to attend.  Dinner will be served from 

6:45 to 7:15 PM.   

Dr. Lyon also reviewed the information previously presented to the Academic Committee for 

the Data Analysis, Grant Updates, and Report Card and Awards Pep Rally.  It was noted that 

the February 14th Pep Rally was an intervention for student motivation.  Students were 

rewarded for behavior, academics, attainment and growth.  Many awards were issued yet the 

data for students who are reading at or above grade level is only at 22%.  This is a problem and 

there are many conversations underway regarding this data and gaps that need to be closed.  



She provided additional information for the RtI program at Enterprise and the feedback from 

Jim Wright, the RTI Consultation and Training consultant’s follow up visit.  Jenn Borgioli, from 

Learner Centered Initiatives, created 3 videos for Test Prep without Corruption – all teachers 

were required to view and respond to the videos.  Dr. Lyon also reviewed the types of 

supports that are available; noting the type of support will depend on funding.  Ms. Norton 

stated that the assembly proposal for the budget cuts charter funding.  We will be watching 

this, as well as Title I and IDEA funding.   

 

Dr. Lyon is now performing unannounced observations.  Ten have been completed with 25 

more that need to be done.     

 

Dr. Lyon stated that the Kindergarten teachers are now using reading levels for their students 

(this was not done in the past).  Our students should be at a C or D level, but would like to see 

all students in that grade at an E level.  Some students are already at an E or F level.  The work 

and use of data taking place in the Kindergarten classrooms is great.   

 
Dr. Lyon also stated that the Buffalo Board of Education, at the March 6th meeting, had many 

compliments for Enterprise Charter School.  

 

 

V. Dean of Students:  Stanley Simmons 

 

Mr. Simmons provided the suspension data for February noting there were no formal 

suspensions.  Formal suspensions are down this year but students continue to struggle with 

social interactions.  Substitute teachers are going much smoother due to additional training in-

house and the sub pool is more consistent.  We also now have four lunch monitors who are 

working out great.   

 

Dr. Cantaffa noted that the new PBIS system needs to support a culture of learning, not just a 

tool for behavior and requested a year-end report comparing last year and the stats for PBIS 

for this year.  Mr. Simmons explained that the PBIS system takes 3-5 years to be successful. 

 

VI. Committee Reports: 

Academic Committee:  Dr. Cantaffa 

 

Dr. Cantaffa explained the Academic Committee meetings have been moved to the 1st Monday 

of the month just before the board meetings to provide up-to-date information for the board 

meetings.  Dr. Cantaffa observed Dr. Lyon, followed by a conference with Dr. Lyon and a 

report to Mr. Morrisroe and Ms. Norton.  He also noted that Dr. Ceprano, the Buffalo State 

Professor who holds classes and works in close contact with teachers in our building, wrote a 

letter to Dr. Lyon congratulating her and our staff on the changes made to our academics here 

at Enterprise Charter School and the progress we will see from those changes.   

 

Executive Committee –Richard Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe stated that difficult decisions are underway as the board must backtrack for the 

renewal issues.  The committee is still discussing the terms of the charter renewal.  The Buffalo 



Board of Education did not attach any strings to our renewal so the ECS board can now start 

to examine the options.   It was noted the level of attainment that is expected is serious and 

employees must realize this.   

 

Mr. Morrisroe also introduced Mr. Orlando Perez as a candidate for the Board of Trustees to 

replace Ms. Pamela King who recently resigned.   

 

The Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees voted to select Orlando Perez as the final 

candidate to the BoT, with a term expiring on 7/1/2014, pending approval by the Buffalo Board 

of Education.  The resolution approving Orlando Perez is formerly adopted upon BOE’s 

approval.  With a motion by Ms. Martin, seconded by Ms. Williams, with all in favor and no 

abstentions, Mr. Perez was nominated as a final candidate for the vacant Board of Trustee 

position. 

 

 

Finance Committee:  Lyle Wallace 
Mr. Wallace also reported that the draft budget for next year is underway, with challenges 

being discussed as well as the needs of Enterprise Charter School’s students. 

 

HR/Personnel Committee-Richard Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe indicated that the logistics for a complete reapplication process would be a 

nightmare.  ECS needs to build on the good aspects and prune the bad.  There are various 

models being discussed for a more intensive review of staff.  Ms. Graham questioned a goal date 

for the plan.  The board realizes the urgency and stated they are still reviewing the options with 

the attorneys.     

 

VII. Other Business: 

 

ECS has hired a new Physical Education teacher, Lindsay Mathais.   

The Social Work position has been posted again.   

 

The enrollment report was reviewed by Ms. Norton noting that we have 5 vacancies but have 

students in line for many of those positions.  It was also noted that we do not bring in new 

students after April 1st due to the lateness in the year.   

There was no public comment. 

 

A motion was made at 7:30 PM by Mr. Morrisroe, seconded by Dr. Cantaffa to go into 

Executive Session to discuss legal options for renewal and the HR plan for renewal.  At 8:40 

PM, a motion was made by D. Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin to end Executive Session.   

 

A motion was made to authorize legal counsel to file an Article 78 and a restraining order 

blocking the decision by the Buffalo Board of Education to change the original vote by Dr. 

Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions was carried.   

 

A motion was made to continue to use the evaluation process, not a mass layoff for the 

upcoming school year was made by Ms. Williams, seconded by Mr. Wallace with 5:1 vote the 



motion was carried.   

 

VIII. Closing Items 

On a motion by Mr. Morrisroe, second by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 8:49 PM. 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 3/11/2013.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate and that the board has 

approved them for publication.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

April 15th, 2013 5:30 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Rachael Martin; Richard Morrisroe, Chairman; David 

Stieglitz, Lyle Wallace and Orlando Perez (Final Candidate)  

Liaisons Present: Kristine Graham and Linda Morgan  

Staff Present: Heather Lyon, CAO; Jill Norton, CEO; Stanley Simmons, Dean of Students, Kevin 

von der Empten, Lisa Yonkosky, Nancy Krug 

Visitors Present:  R. Timothy O’Neill (WNY Education Services Council) 

 

I. Opening Items 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Richard Morrisroe, Chairman, at 5:40 PM with a 

quorum of 5 present. 

Public Notice was confirmed. 

 
The minutes of the 3/11/2013 meeting of the Board of Trustees were approved on a motion by 

Dr. Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

II. Director’s Report:  Jill Norton 

Renewal Status Report:  

Ms. Norton reported she has no new information regarding the renewal other than our 

renewal is anticipated to be on the agenda for the Board of Regents on Monday April 22nd for a 

vote on April 23rd.  We are unable to confirm this information as we have not had a response 

to our inquiry to the NY State Education Department (SED).  By our clock, the 90 days the 

state has to vote on our renewal is up by their April meeting so it must appear on the 

upcoming agenda.   

 

Monthly Update – Jill Norton 

Ms. Norton responded that she has no updates at this time.  Mr. Morrisroe welcomed our newest 

Board Member, Orlando Perez, who was recently approved by the Buffalo Board of Education.  

A motion was made by Mr. Stieglitz and seconded by Mr. Wallace to accept Orlando Perez as an 

Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustee, with all in favor and no abstentions, the motion was 

passed.    
 

III. Financial Report:  Mr. Wallace 

The February 2013 Financials were reviewed by the Finance Committee and Mr. Wallace 

reported there was nothing material noted, the unfavorable variances are due to timing 

differences and will be offset in the future.  A motion was made by Dr. Cantaffa to approve the 

January 2013 Financial Report and seconded by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

The Finance Committee also reviewed bids for the spring / summer seasons for Landscaping for 

2013-2015.  Three companies responded to the request for proposals and Westwood 

Landscaping was recommended for the award.  They are the lowest bidder, are familiar with 

our complex as they held our snowplowing service, and their price remains the same over the 

three year contract.  The other companies have an increase in pricing over the span of the 



contract.  Mr. von der Empten, Chief Custodian, agrees with this decision.   On a motion by 

Mr. Stieglitz, seconded by Ms. Martin, Westwood Landscaping was awarded the contract for 

the spring / summer landscaping service for 2013-2015 in the amount of $7,475.00. 

 

IV. Academic Excellence Report:  Heather Lyon 

Dr. Lyon provided an update for the Tower Grant, PICCS Grant and Race to the Top Grant.  

We are currently awaiting approval for amendments for the Tower Grant as LCI will not be 

providing services and we are looking to support other areas.  Paula Bevan from PICCS 

performed walk throughs with Dr. Cantaffa and Dr. Lyon.   

 

A PBIS survey is being completed by the staff to get feedback for the new behavioral system 

utilized this year.   

 

The New York State assessments will be scored by a third party to avoid conflict of interest 

issues.   

 
Dr. Lyon announced the awards ceremony for the 3rd quarter report cards will be held on May 

6th at 1:30 PM and the Board is welcome to attend. Mr. Simmons is currently working with the 

Motivation Committee on the awards ceremony.   

 

The Data Team is reviewing school-wide data to show how many students are at grade level 

and proficient.  Readiness and retention meetings will begin to occur, facilitated by Dr. Lyon, 

Stephanie Brauner, and Ms. Morgan, using the 3rd term report cards.   

 

All unscheduled observations have been completed.  On April 23rd, the evaluation process will 

be shared with the staff.   

 

Dr. Lyon reviewed the reading levels for comparison for the beginning of the year and middle 

of the year data.  Much growth is being seen in grades 1-6 and 57% of the students in Grade 5 

are at or above grade level.  Dr. Lyon indicated that the majority of students went up 5 reading 

levels from the beginning of the year to the middle of the year.  Dr. Cantaffa stated we should 

celebrate the work that teachers are doing as we are seeing growth.   

 

Dr. Lyon noted that RtI block for additional levels of support was instrumental in this progress.  

The level of monitoring is unprecedented.  Dr. Cantaffa noted we are progressing, not 

regressing and stated the Board must continue to receive and review the data to make 

appropriate decisions.   

 

Ms. Norton stated this should be tied to a goal and Mr. Stieglitz suggested that this be added to 

the agenda.   

 

V. Dean of Students:  Stanley Simmons 

Mr. Simmons provided the suspension data for March noting that holiday breaks tend to spike 

suspensions.   Formal suspensions are down this year and students continue to struggle with 

social interactions.  We had no weighted incidents for March.  

 



Mr. Simmons reported that Gateway Longview will have a satellite office in our facility beginning 

April 16th to address the emotional issues of our students and families.  In addition, our new 

Social Worker, Lia Fegley, is starting next week.  Ms. Morgan, our School Counselor is also 

supportive in this area.  Dr. Cantaffa expressed that clear goals for the behavioral expectations 

of students is necessary as it affects learning.  Ms. Norton suggested using the Data Dashboard 

on Highbar but it must first be tied to goals and the mission and vision of our school.  We need 

to continue to monitor data to for areas in need.   

 

VI. Committee Reports: 

Academic Committee:  Dr. Cantaffa 

Dr. Cantaffa expressed gratitude to Dr. Lyon on behalf of the Committee as he had the 

opportunity to join Dr. Lyon and Paula Bevan from the Danielson Group on a walk about 

through the school.  It was an invaluable experience and the association available through the 

PICCS grant is wonderful.  

 

Dr. Cantaffa also reported that he is attending the Teacher Recruitment Day (TRD) with Dr. 
Lyon on April 16th.  Dr. Lyon reported the ELA tests are occurring this week, with the Math 

assessments next week.  Dr. Lyon gave kudos to Andrew Starr on ensuring that the scheduling 

and distribution of tests and testing materials is all set. 

 

Dr. Lyon also reported that the students were challenged to read over the spring break.  The 

winning classroom from grade 5 read in excess of 12,000 minutes.  That class now has the 

opportunity to throw pies at Ms. Norton, Dr. Lyon, Mr. Starr, and Mr. Simmons this Friday at 

3:30.  The entire school is invited to watch and it will provide a break from testing for the 

students.  In total, the school read for 52,828 minutes.   

 

Dr. Cantaffa reported he attended the Education Leadership Summit with Dr. Lyon and Marisa 

Adams, a Reading Specialist.  He thanked the Board for providing the school staff the 

opportunity to attend this conference. 

 

Executive Committee –Richard Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe formally recognized Ms. Norton’s resignation and thanked her for her many 

years of service and the actual creation of Enterprise Charter School.  Dr. Cantaffa thanked her 

for being welcoming to him as a new board member. 

 

The Organizational Chart was addressed by Mr. Morrisroe for the proposed chart.  Mr. 

Morrisroe and Ms. Norton spoke of the changes to the chart and how they relate to the 

mandates and needs of the school to ultimately make improvements for our students.  Mr. 

Morrisroe noted the CEO would be responsible for outside funding as we cannot rely on 

grants.  A motion for approval of the Organizational Chart was made by Mr. Wallace, seconded 

by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no abstentions.   

 

Mr. Morrisroe discussed two options for a search for CEO candidates.  The Board received 

two proposals and is recommending the proposal from Dr. Vincent Coppola, a former 

superintendent of 2 school districts and has provided searches for charter schools in the past.  

It was also noted that he is local and his fee is slightly lower than the other company.  On a 



motion by Mr. Stieglitz, seconded by Mr. Wallace, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

contract for the CEO search was awarded to Dr. Vincent Coppola.  Mr. Stieglitz recommends 

we have a special Board meeting so all Board Members may meet Dr. Coppola.   

 

Finance Committee:  Lyle Wallace 

Mr. Wallace also reported that the draft budget for next year is still in process, noting the 

challenges due to our frozen funding and the possibility of fundraising efforts.  The Finance 

Committee is meeting on April 17th and the Board will be updated.   

 

HR/Personnel Committee-Richard Morrisroe 

Ms. Norton stated that the Social Worker, Lia Fegley, has been hired and is starting April 24th.  

The Employee Handbook is currently under review and will be presented for committee review 

at the next HR Committee.  SLO’s are still in process.   

 

A question arose about the status of the lunch monitors on the Organizational Chart as they 

are not listed.  Ms. Norton explained that we hope to retain their services but they are not 
currently budgeted.   

 

VII. Other Business: 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Stieglitz, seconded by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no 

abstentions to accept and recognize the hiring of Lia Fegley as the Social Worker.   

There are no emergency conditional appointments at this time.  

 

The enrollment report was reviewed by Ms. Norton noting that we have 4 vacancies for 

students who left in late March.  We do not replace students after April 1st   due to the lateness 

in the year.  We have 35 students who have registered for Kindergarten for next year, with 10 

additional families who have appointments coming up.   

 

There was no public comment. 

 

VIII. Closing Items 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 7:25 PM. 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 4/15/2013.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate and that the board has 

approved them for publication.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Special Board of Trustees Meeting 

April 29th, 2013 4:30 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Rachael Martin; Richard Morrisroe, Chairman; David 

Stieglitz, and Orlando Perez  

Liaisons Present: Kristine Graham and Linda Morgan  

Staff Present: Heather Lyon, CAO; Jill Norton, CEO; Kevin von der Empten, Chief Custodian; 

Nancy Krug, Operations Manager and Board Secretary 

Visitors Present:  Vincent Coppola (WNY Education Services Council) 

 

I. Opening Items 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Richard Morrisroe, Chairman, at 4:37 PM with a 

quorum of 4 present.   Public Notice was confirmed. 

 

II. CEO Search Update 
 

Mr. Vincent Coppola introduced himself and provided references for all present.  He explained 

it is his understanding that Ms. Norton will be leaving Enterprise Charter School on July 1st, 

2013 and a replacement search will occur in hopes of having someone in place by the start of 

our academic year.  The process and timetable was reviewed as well items that Mr. Coppola 

needs to properly perform his search.   

 

Mr. Coppola discussed meeting with focus groups to find out more about our school.  Focus 

groups (comprised of approximately 10 people) will be formed for members of the teaching 

staff, non-teaching staff, parents, administration, and community partners.  A schedule has been 

generated to meet with each focus group for approximately 45 minutes.  Mr. Coppola is 

interested in the positive aspects of Enterprise, as well as any concerns individuals may have.  

Two people from each focus group will then be selected to assist in the final interview process.   

 

Mr. Coppola and the members of the Board of Trustees discussed the specifics for 

qualifications for the CEO position and how and where it should be advertised.   

 

The schedule was reviewed for availability of board members and the process for interviewing 

final candidates.  The Charter Renewal status was also reviewed. 

 

III. Closing Items 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 6:24 PM. 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 4/29/2013.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate and that the board has 

approved them for publication.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

May 14th, 2013 6:45 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Dr. David Cantaffa; Rachael Martin; Richard Morrisroe, Chairman;  

David Stieglitz, Orlando Perez   

Liaisons Present: Linda Morgan  

Staff Present: Jill Norton, CEO; Kevin von der Empten, Lisa Yonkosky, Andrew Starr 

 

X. Opening Items 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Richard Morrisroe, Chairman, at 6:45 PM with a 

quorum present. Public Notice was confirmed. 

 

The minutes of the 4/15/2013 meeting of the Board of Trustees were approved on a motion by 

Dr. Cantaffa, seconded by Mr. Wallace, with all in favor and no abstentions.  The 4/29/13 

Special Board Meeting was also approved on a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin, 
with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

XI. Director’s Report:  Jill Norton 

Status Report:  

The 2013-2014 Budget was discussed by Ms. Norton including the health care increase of 18%, 

that Enterprise will pay 25% of the higher deductible for health care, as well as the 

Organizational Chart changes per the Executive Committee meeting.  A motion was made by 

Dr. Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions to approve the 2013-

2014 budget. 

 

XII. Financial Report:  Mr. Wallace 

The March 2013 Financials were reviewed by the Finance Committee and Mr. Wallace reported 

there were no real variances from last month.  Enterprise did receive the IDEA funds from 

Buffalo to offset a portion of the Special Education costs   A motion was made by Mr. Wallace 

to approve the March 2013 Financial Report and seconded by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and 

no abstentions. 

 

XIII. Academic Excellence Report:  Heather Lyon 

Andrew Starr provided an update on behalf of Dr. Lyon.  He reported all SLO’s have been 

approved and readiness meetings were conducted.   

 

Mr. Starr also distributed a suspension data report from Mr. Simmons.  After a review of the 

report, Ms. Norton stated ECS is heading in the right direction.  The new Social Worker has 

proved to be very helpful.  In addition, the new Gateway Longview satellite office at ECS has 

received many referrals.   

 

  Committee Reports: 

Academic Committee:  Dr. Cantaffa 

Dr. Cantaffa reported that there are no additions to the information that Mr. Starr had just 

reported.   



Executive Committee –Richard Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe reviewed the contract for board consulting services through the WNY 

Educational Service Council.  After a brief discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Wallace to 

approve the contract, seconded by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions.   

 

The amendments to the Organizational Charter were discussed with a part time Psychologist 

position.  On a motion by Ms. Martin, seconded by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no 

abstentions, the motion passed for the approval of the amended Organizational Chart.   

 

Mr. Morrisroe went on to discuss our new candidate for the Board of Trustees, Thomas Ess.  

The ECS Board of Trustees voted to select Thomas Ess as the final candidate, with a term 

expiring on 7/1/14, pending approval by the Buffalo Board of Education.   

 

Finance Committee:  Lyle Wallace 

Mr. Wallace reviewed a contract for Optimal Therapy Associate Services (OTAS) who perform 

Occupational and Physical Therapy for the students at ECS.  On a motion by Mr. Wallace, 
seconded by Dr. Cantaffa, with all in favor and no abstentions, the motion to accept the 

contract for OTAS was approved. 

 

HR/Personnel Committee-Richard Morrisroe 

Mr. Morrisroe and Ms. Norton discussed the recent terminations.  On a motion by Dr. 

Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions, the terminations were 

upheld.  Ms. Norton informed the board that Ms. Brauner will not be returning as she is moving 

to Florida.  

 

The health insurance renewal for Blue Cross Blue Shield was approved on a motion by Dr. 

Cantaffa, seconded by Mr. Wallace, with all in favor and no abstentions.   

 

XIV.  Executive – Ms. Norton 

Ms. Norton reported there will be closure on the job descriptions very soon.   

 

There are no emergency conditional appointments at this time.  

There were no changes on the enrollment report from last month.   

There was no public comment. 

 

I. Closing Items 

On a motion by Dr. Cantaffa, second by Mr. Wallace, with all in favor and no abstentions, the 

meeting was adjourned at 7:19 PM. 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 5/14/2013.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate and that the board has 

approved them for publication.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 

 

 



ENTERPRISE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Minutes: Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

June 10th, 2013 5:30 PM  275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 

 

Trustees Present: Rachael Martin; Richard Morrisroe, Chairman;  Lyle Wallace; David Stieglitz, 

Dr. David Cantaffa (arrived at 6:16 PM) 

Trustees excused:  Orlando Perez   

Liaisons Present: Linda Morgan, Kristine Graham 

Staff Present: Jill Norton, CEO; Kevin von der Empten, Lisa Yonkosky, Stanley Simmons, Dr. 

Heather Lyon, Nancy Krug 

Guests Present:  Jesse Baldwin (Damon & Morey), Melissa Perez 

 

XV. Opening Items 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Richard Morrisroe, Chairman, at 5:28 PM with a 

quorum of 4 present. Public Notice was confirmed. 

 
The minutes of the 5/14/2013 meeting of the Board of Trustees were approved on a motion by 

Mr. Wallace, seconded by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions.  The minutes for the 

Executive Committee for 5/14/2013 were also approved on a motion by Mr. Wallace, seconded 

by Ms. Martin with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

Mr. Morrisroe took a moment to recognize Mr. Thomas Ess, as an official Board of Trustee, as 

approved by the Buffalo Board of Education.  On a motion by Mr. Wallace, seconded by Mr. 

Steiglitz, with all in favor and no absentions, Mr. Ess was welcomed to the Board.  

 

XVI. Director’s Report:  Jill Norton 

Renewal Status Report:  

Ms. Norton provided a recap about the one year renewal agreement explaining that the Buffalo 

Board of Education (BOE) was asked to reconsider their original vote for a three year renewal.  

They changed their vote to a one year renewal.  Ms. Norton indicated that Enterprise did not 

agree to one year as we did not sign an operating agreement for the one year, we signed an 

operating agreement for three years.  Buffalo agreed that this was a procedural error.  When 

asked why the decision had changed, the Buffalo Board of Trustees stated that they did not 

know they could look at academics as part of the renewal and when all areas were reviewed, 

the change took place.  There are currently two litigations against the state due to flawed 

processes. 

 

Ms. Norton is looking for answers for a one year renewal such as when would a site visit take 

place and when would we submit another renewal?  It is difficult to know how to proceed as a 

one year term has no clear rules or direction.   

 

XVII. Financial Report:  Mr. Wallace 

The April 2013 Financials were reviewed by the Finance Committee and Mr. Wallace stated 

there was nothing material to report.  Enterprise is still on target and negative variances are 

offset by positive variances.    A motion was made by Mr. Wallace to approve the April 2013 

Financial Report and seconded by Ms. Martin, with all in favor and no abstentions. 



 

The following contracts were reviewed by Mr. Wallace: 

Philadelphia Insurance for General Property, Liability, and Auto insurance coverage to June 

2014 

Palmisano Architecture for a schedule of capital improvements 

Lumsden McCormick for the External Auditing Contract from 2013-2015 

The Food Service Contract between ECS and the Buffalo Board of Education 

Buffalo Hearing and Speech to provide speech services for the upcoming academic year 

 

A discussion took place on the importance of the upkeep and build-out of our facility for our 

students, families, visitors and site visits.   

 

On a motion by Mr. Wallace, seconded by Mr. Ess, with all in favor and no abstentions, all five 

contracts were approved.   

 

XVIII. Academic Excellence Report:  Heather Lyon 
Dr. Lyon reported on the grant updates noting the Tower Grant was coming to a close.  IPad 

Mini’s were purchased using the Tower Grant funds for classrooms to record data.  There is an 

upcoming PICCS meeting for possibilities for next year.  RTTT networking with BOCES 

discussions are underway for qualified services.  Title IIA is still in process with the writing 

scope and sequence consultants.   

 

Dr. Lyon discussed the student readiness index and the formula used to determine whether a 

student is promoted or retained.  4% of  Enterprise students were retained.   

 

Dr. Lyon also reported that as of June 3rd, all observations were completed for employees hired 

before February 2013.   

 

Mr. Simmons informed the board about a spike in suspensions, many were repeat offenders.  

Gateway Longview has received a number of referrals from Mr. Simmons and Ms. Morgan.  Ms. 

Fegley, our school Social Worker, is also working with many students.  Mr. Simmons stated 

that we set high standards for our students, which keeps our VADIR report numbers down.  

 

  Committee Reports: 

Academic Committee:  Dr. Cantaffa 

See above notes from Dr. Lyon 

 

 

     Executive Committee –Richard Morrisroe 

There are no emergency conditional appointments at this time.  

There was no public comment. 

 

   

     Finance Committee:  Lyle Wallace 

The Finance Committee items were discussed earlier in this meeting. 

 



     HR/Personnel Committee-Richard Morrisroe 

The Employee Handbook went before the HR/Personnel Committee.  Edits were completed 

and our HR Consultant gave his approval.  A motion was made to accept the revised Employee 

Handbook by Mr. Wallace, seconded by Dr. Cantaffa with all in favor and no abstentions.  A 

motion was also made by Mr. Wallace to accept the job description changes, seconded by Mr. 

Stieglitz, with all in favor and no abstentions. 

 

Letters will be mailed home by the end of the week for staff notification of their return to 

Enterprise, as well as the total compensation package.  All contracted staff will receive a letter 

(not per diem employees). Data for determination of these letters includes prior evaluations 

and walk throughs.  Lunch monitors will be notified in August after we review whether our 

mandated services for ESL have changed.  Dr. Lyon strongly requested that the board find the 

funds to cover lunch monitors so certified staff members can be attending to certified needs.  A 

review will take place at the upcoming Finance Committee meeting 

 

Enrollment Report – Jill Norton 
 

Ms. Norton reported enrollment stayed steady throughout the year.  We had 4 recent 

expulsions. 

 

Legal Operations and Personnel Issues – A motion was made at 6:44 PM by Ms. Martin to go 

into Executive Session to discuss personnel issues, seconded by Mr. Wallace, with all in favor 

and no abstentions.   

 

A motion was made by Ms. Martin at 6:59 PM to come out of Executive Session, seconded by 

Mr. Ess, with all in favor and no abstentions.  Mr. Morrisroe reported that a few people will be 

asked not to return to Enterprise, most people will be invited back.  The liaisons are to inform 

employees to follow the handbook for any questions. 

 

A motion was made at 7:06 PM by Dr. Cantaffa, seconded by Mr. Stieglitz, with all in favor and 

no abstentions to go into Executive Session again to discuss the charter renewal and the 

potential litigation.   

 

A motion was made by Mr. Stieglitz at 8:06 PM to come out of Executive Session, seconded by 

Mr. Ess, with all in favor and no abstentions.   

 

A motion was made by Dr. Cantaffa, seconded by Ms. Martin with all in favor, except Mr. Ess 

who abstained, to engage Damon and Morey to begin litigation against the Buffalo Board of 

Education, the State Education Department and the Board or Regents.   

 

A motion was made by Mr. Stieglitz, seconded by Mr. Wallace with 4 in favor, one nay (Ms. 

Martin) and one abstention (Mr. Ess) to reject the 1 year renewal because the Board of 

Education failed to tell us (ECS) a timetable for the renewal process.  This board will not agree 

to the arbitrary and capricious change from a three year renewal to a one year renewal.  

Furthermore, we believe the school, the staff, and families it serves deserve the three years.  

 



II. Closing Items 

On a motion by Ms. Martin, second by Mr. Ess, with all in favor and no abstentions, the meeting 

was adjourned at 8:08 PM. 

 

I, Rachel Martin, Secretary of Enterprise Charter School Board of Trustees, was present at a 

meeting held 6/10/2013.  I verify that the foregoing minutes are accurate and that the board has 

approved them for publication.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Rachel Martin, Board of Trustees 
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Required Form: Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest Form
Created Monday, July 15, 2013

https://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/167cbade035153ee13c9becab45eb7d02a74ef89/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

David T Cantaffa

2. Charter School Name:

Enterprise Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

Buffalo Board of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)
•  Vice Chair/Vice President
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9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 
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Required Form: Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest Form
Created Wednesday, July 17, 2013

https://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/0795b12c124b806da23c9e4996267500f535ecb5/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Rachel Martin

2. Charter School Name:

Enterprise Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

Buffalo Board of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address ve

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)
•  Secretary



Page 2

•  Parent Representative

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 
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Required Form: Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest Form
Created Saturday, July 27, 2013

https://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/6de192526f0267974ce2b5b810bec9838be5790b/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Richard J Morrisroe

2. Charter School Name:

Enterprise Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

Buffalo Board of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)
•  Chair/President
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9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 
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